# QUEANBEYAN DISTRICT CRICKET CLUB INC.

www.queanbeyancricket.com



Equitas, Instituto et Prosperitas

# "The Mighty Bluebags"

# 2019-2020 ANNUAL REPORT

## **Table of Contents**

CLUB HISTORY	4
CLUB PERPETUAL AWARDS	6
2019-2020 MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	8
CLUB CAPTAINS	10
LIFE MEMBERS	11
CLUB SPONSORS & SUPPORTERS	12
PRESIDENT'S REPORT	13
SECRETARY'S REPORT	15
TREASURER'S REPORT	18
MAJOR AWARD WINNERS	20
INDIVIDUAL ACHIEVEMENTS	23
2019-2020 CLUB PERFORMANCES	24
REPRESENTATIVE HONOURS & SPECIAL AWARDS	26
PLAYER MILESTONES	27
PREMIERSHIP SCORECARDS	30
3rd Grade – One-day Cup Final	30
FIRST GRADE REPORT	31
SECOND GRADE REPORT	33
THIRD GRADE REPORT	35
FOURTH GRADE REPORT	37
FIFTH GRADE REPORT	39
VETERANS CRICKET REPORT	41
CLUB RECORDS	44
CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS	44
1 <sup>ST</sup> GRADE	44
Team Records	45
Individual Records	45
Best Partnerships	45
Fastest Century	45
Quickest Century Partnership	45
2nd Grade	46
Individual Records	46
3rd Grade	46
Individual Records	46
4TH GRADE	47
Individual Records	47
5TH GRADE	47
Individual Records (Post 2005)	47
Individual Records (Pre 2005) 6TH GRADE	47 48
Individual Records	48
VETERANS COMPETITIONS	48
Team Records	48
Individual Records	48
Best Partnerships	49
WOMEN'S	49

Lynn O'Meara	49
(Est 1984)	49
Premierships	49
Individual Records	49
Best Partnerships	49
Glenda Hall	49
Individual Records	49
Best Partnerships	50
APPENDIX A – SEASON STATISTICS	51

### **Editor's Note:**

I would like to thank the following people whose contributions for this report were invaluable:

Rohan Ditton, Matt Harding, Mark Solway, Phil Moore, Peter Solway, Steve Cross, Daniel Clugston & Ian Hamill

Ron Bates

# **Club History**

(Since 1972)

YEAR	PATRON	PRESIDENT	SECRETARY	TREASURER	CLUB COACH/ COORDINATOR	1st GRADE CAPTAIN	CLUB CHAMPION	
72-73	L McIntyre	C Berry	L Buckley	R Davis	R Flockton	R Flockton	T Waters	
73-74	L McIntyre	C Berry	S McDonald	R Davis	R Flockton	R Flockton	B Rogers	
74-75	L McIntyre	C Berry	S McDonald	T Waters	R Flockton	R Flockton	R Coffey	
75-76	L McIntyre	C Berry	R Sadler	R Davis	R Flockton	R Flockton	C Dooley	
76-77	F Nash	W McDonald	R Sadler	R Harding	n/a	L Buckley	R Heading	
77-78	F Nash	R Hatch	S Bailey	A Hodgson	G Samuels	R Heading	W Campbell	
78-79	F Nash	R Hatch	S Bailey	A Hodgson	G Samuels	G Samuels	W Campbell	
79-80	F Nash	R Hatch	S Bailey	D Murphy	G Samuels	G Samuels	N Bulger/C Berry	
80-81	F Nash	R Hatch	S Bailey	D Murphy /C Brown	G Samuels	G Samuels	N Bulger	
81-82	L Buckley	S Bailey	R Longmore	D Holzhauser	G Samuels	G Samuels	N Bulger	
82-83	L Buckley	S Bailey/R Hatch	R Longmore	G Mann	G Samuels	G Samuels	W Campbell	
83-84	L Buckley	G Samuels	M Allen	G Mann	G Samuels	G Samuels	M Lynch	
84-85	I McNamee	G Mann	R Carruthers	J Solway	W Campbell	N Bulger	Not Awarded	
85-86	I McNamee	G Mann	R Carruthers	J Solway	M Thornton	M Thornton	J Bull	
86-87	I McNamee	P Moon	R Carruthers	J Solway	M Thornton	M Thornton	J Bull	
87-88	I McNamee	P Moon	R Carruthers	J Solway	M Thornton	M Thornton	M Carruthers	
88-89	I McNamee	P Moon	R Carruthers	J Solway	M Thornton	M Thornton	M Frost	
89-90	I McNamee	P Moon	C Ball	I Hamill	J Bull	J Bull	P Solway	
90-91	I McNamee	P Moon	J Solway	I Hamill	J Bull	J Bull	P Solway	
91-92	I McNamee	P Moon	R Carruthers	J Solway	P Solway	P Solway	N Bulger	
92-93	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	J Solway	P Solway	P Solway	J Bull	
93-94	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	M Lynch	n/a	M Frost	R Regent	
94-95	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	H Greenwell	J Bull	J Bull	N Bulger	
95-96	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	H Greenwell	S O'Shaughnessy	S O'Shaughnessy	C Scammell	
96-97	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	H Greenwell	R Regent	R Regent	N Bulger	
97-98	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	M Lynch	R Regent	R Regent	M Higgs	
98-99	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	M Lynch	C Hume	J Swift	J Martin	
99-00	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	A King	C Hume	J Swift	J Swift	
00-01	I McNamee	R Winchester	A King	S McGlashan	C Hume	J Swift	J Swift	
01-02	I McNamee	M Frost	C Doyle	S McGlashan	P Nemes	M O'Rourke	A Heading	
02-03	I McNamee	M Frost	S Cross	S McGlashan	P Nemes	M O'Rourke	S Frost	
03-04	I McNamee	M Frost	S Cross	S McGlashan	P Nemes	S Frost	G McMahon	

YEAR	PATRON	PRESIDENT	SECRETARY	TREASURER	CLUB COACH/ COORDINATOR	1st GRADE CAPTAIN	CLUB CHAMPION
04-05	I McNamee	M Frost	S Cross	S McGlashan	P Baker	P Coleborne	A Heading
05-06	I McNamee	M Frost	S Cross	S McGlashan	P Baker	A Heading	P Jensen
06-07	I McNamee	M Frost	S Cross	P Coleborne	P Baker	M Higgs	M Higgs
07-08	I McNamee	I McNamee	S Cross	G Elliott	P Baker	M Higgs	M Higgs
08-09	I McNamee	I McNamee	R Bates	G Elliott	P Solway/M Frost	M Higgs	J Dean
09-10	I McNamee	I McNamee	R Bates	G Elliott	P Solway/J Dean	J Dean	J Dean/M Higgs
10-11	I McNamee	I McNamee	R Bates	G Elliott	P Solway/J Dean	J Dean	M Higgs
11-12	I McNamee	P Solway	R Bates	G Elliott	P Solway	A Ayre	M Higgs
12-13	I McNamee	P Solway	R Bates	G Elliott	T Shiner	A Ayre	A Ayre/P Coleborne
13-14	I McNamee	P Solway	R Bates	M Harding	B Dean	B Dean	V Dukoski
14-15	I McNamee	P Solway	R Bates	M Harding	V Bennett	S Taylor	P Jensen
15-16	I McNamee	P Solway	R Bates	M Harding	M O'Rourke	V Dukoski	P Jensen
16-17	I McNamee	R Ditton	R Bates	M Harding	P Solway	V Dukoski	DJ Southwell
17-18	I McNamee	R Ditton	R Bates	M Harding	P Solway	M Spaseski	M Stachow
18-19	I McNamee	R Ditton	R Bates	M Harding	L Walker	M Solway	K Ditton
19-20	I McNamee	R Ditton	R Bates	M Harding	P Solway/M Higgs	M Solway	Tyler Van Luin

# **Club Perpetual Awards**

(Since 1972)

YEAR	Malcolm Allen Memorial Award Outstanding Contribution	Ian McNamee Award Presidents Trophy	Greg Mann Memorial Award Players' Player	Most Promising Junior Player (Luke Bush Memorial Award since 2011)	John Solway Memorial Award Spirit of Cricket	Mark Higgs Medal	
72-73				Not Awarded			
73-74				Geoff Hague			
74-75				Geoff Hague			
75-76				Ray Daniel			
76-77				Peter Hungerford			
77-78				Peter Hungerford			
78-79	Award first presented in			Not Awarded			
79-80	1986-87			Not Awarded			
80-81			Award first presented in	Not Awarded			
81-82			1990-91	Not Awarded			
82-83				Not Awarded			
83-84				Not Awarded			
84-85					Stephen Frost		
85-86				Colin Corbett			
86-87	Neil Bulger	Award first presented in		Scott Bannerman	Award first presented in	Award first presented in	
87-88	Mark Thornton	2003-04		Geoff McMurray	2009-10	2014-15	
88-89	Peter Solway			Robert Regent			
89-90	Ian Hamill			Not Awarded			
90-91	Ian McNamee		Damien Tongs	Not Awarded			
91-92	Not Awarded		Mark Lynch	Mark Higgs			
92-93	Mark Lynch		Michael Nairn	Brad Haddin			
93-94	Geoff McMurray		Phil McMurray	Adrian Brunker			
94-95	Michael Frost & Michael Carruthers		Stephen Cross	Jeremy Eagle			
95-96	Greg Dawes		Matt Jackson	Peter Coleborne			
96-97	Simon McLoughlin		Hugh Renshaw	Adam Hatch			
97-98	John Regent		Brendan MacNamara	Chris Hamill			
98-99	Sarah McGlashan		Ashley King	Lucas James			
99-00	Ron McGlashan		Michael O'Rourke	Steven Hamill			
00-01	Ashley King		Graham Hannaford	Raglan Maddox			

YEAR	Malcolm Allen Memorial Award Outstanding Contribution	Ian McNamee Award Presidents Trophy	Greg Mann Memorial Award Players' Player	Most Promising Junior Player (Luke Bush Memorial Award since 2011)	John Solway Memorial Award Spirit of Cricket	Mark Higgs Medal
01-02	Michael Sargent Snr & Sarah McGlashan		Adam Heading	Steve Peios		
02-03	Ron McGlashan		Dean Stewart	Dean Stewart		
03-04	Steve Donnelly	Ben Gray	Dean Mansfield	Michael Baker		
04-05	Phil Noble	Simon Fahey	Simon Fahey	Em Preston		
05-06	Peter Baker	Greg Dawes	Ben Stensrud	Callum Birtles		
06-07	Dean Mansfield	Kyle Mackay-Laws	Peter Solway	Em Preston		
07-08	Ron Bates	Gordon Elliott	Con Danassis	Jordan McLennan		
08-09	James Buckley	Greg Dawes	Peter Coleborne	Dean Solway		
09-10	Ian McNamee	Peter Solway	Adam Heading	Luke Bush	Lea Hansen	
10-11	Peter Solway	Stephen Cross	Darren Southwell	Aaron Ayre	Chris Doyle	
11-12	Gordon Elliott	Ron Bates	Vele Dukoski	Dean Solway	David & Ingrid Ayre	
12-13	Stephen Cross	Ron Bates	Aaron Ayre	Lakshmn Shivakumar	Derren & Ratsny Gillespie	
13-14	Matt Harding	Adrian Brunker	Darren Southwell	Mark Solway	Michael Curtale & Sam Taylor	
14-15	Ratsny Gillespie & Julie Solway	Rohan Ditton	Darren Southwell	Henry Hunt	David Horsfall	Ed Barnard
15-16	Adrian Brunker	Matt Harding	Henry Hunt	Kel Evans	Michael Medved	Henry Hunt
16-17	Dean Solway & Mark Solway	Michael Gilshenen	Josh Gregory	Tyler Van Luin	Abhinash Kumar	Mark Solway
17-18	Peter Solway	Darren Southwell	Michael Medved	Jack Allen	Tom Christou & Brad Moore	Vele Dukoski
18-19	Rohan Ditton	Michael O'Rourke	Tyler Van Luin	Abhinash Kumar	Jack Murdoch	Mark Solway
19-20	Ron Bates	Dr Mike Kelly	Micah Manners	Tom Kellar	Darren Southwell	Tyler Van Luin

# 2019-2020 Management Committee Patron



Mr Ian McNamee

**Executive** 

President Vice President



**Mr Stephen Cross** 

OOC WATERWAY IN THE PARTY OF TH

**Vice President** 

**Mr Michael O'Rourke** (Junior Pathway Manager)

**Honorary Secretary** 

**Mr Rohan Ditton** 



**Mr Ron Bates** 



**Honorary Treasurer** 

**Mr Matthew Harding** 

# **General Committee**



Mr Chris Doyle



Mr Dom Di Campli



Mr Mark Higgs (Coaching Staff)



**Mr Phil Moore** 



**Mr Stephen Moore** 



Mr Mark Solway



Mr Peter Solway (Head Coach)



**Mr Darren Southwell** 

# **Club Captains**

1st Grade Mark Solway



3rd Grade Peter Solway



5th Grade Daniel Clugston



2nd Grade Phil Moore



4th Grade Steve Cross



Greybaggers Ian Hamill



# **Life Members**

```
Jack McNamara* (1960)
  Frank Nash* (1960)
  Doug Moore* (1967)
  Ian Armour* (1970)
    Col Berry (1977)
   Ray Hatch (1983)
  Stephen Bailey (1985)
  Gary Samuels (1985)
  John Solway* (1991)
 Richard Carruthers (1991)
 Jan McNamee (2001)
   Neil Bulger (2001)
  Michael Frost (2009)
  Stephen Cross (2009)
   Peter Solway (2009)
   Phil Moon* (2011)
  Stephen Frost (2011)
 Terry Freebody* (2012)
Winston McDonald (2012)
Graeme Alexander (2012)
  Lloyd Buckley (2013)
  Rod Winchester (2013)
  James Martin (2014)
 Ron McGlashan (2014)
    Ron Bates (2017)
 Darren Southwell (2018)
```

\* Deceased

# **Club Sponsors & Supporters**

The Queanbeyan District Cricket Club would like to thank the following businesses and organisations for their support for the 2019-2020 season:

# Major Sponsor Queanbeyan Kangaroo Club Ltd



# **Other Sponsors/Supporters**













# **President's Report**

Season 2019/20 will be remembered as one of the most disrupted seasons in recent memory. Play was lost to rain, heat, smoke, and in the end the Covid-19 restrictions resulted in the cancellation of the 2 Day grand finals. Despite all the setbacks, it was another relatively successful one for the Bluebags.

3rd Grade won their one-day competition, with 1st, 3rd & 4th Grades runners up. We were joint premiers in the T/20 Grades 2, 3 & 4 thanks to another washout. And the same grades were runners up in the two-day competition, with the grand finals abandoned due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Despite the setbacks, these were encouraging results across the grades.

Our 1st grade squad in particular showed improvement over the season, led by captain Mark Solway. It was great to see them playing for silverware again, unfortunately beaten by a redhot Creek in one day final. And the wet weather robbed us of a chance in the T/20 semi-final. As mentioned, we are very pleased by the results from our first-grade side last season, we know we have a bright future ahead if we can keep the bulk of our squad.

Thanks as always to our coaching staff led by Head Coach Peter Solway and Mark Higgs. We continue to lead clubs in junior player development as we have done for the past 15 or more years. As shown in 3rd & 4th Grade our ability to develop our talented juniors, but also retain our senior experienced players to provide the vital guidance is unmatched. Our continued commitment to the development of juniors throughout the Queanbeyan and southern NSW area will ensure we remain the go to club for talented kids in the region.

Away from club cricket we again hosted various representative matches & carnivals, this season again saw us hosting the Comets & Meteors in some preseason trials, the Defence Force & U/15 girl's nationals, as well as numerous junior comets matches. Thanks to everyone who volunteered their time in making these events possible, it's a huge logistical challenge running these carnivals but the benefits to the club make it well worth the effort.

Off the field, we utilised grants from the Commonwealth Government to make improvements to our training nets at Neil Bulger Oval. With the nets now fully turfed and enclosed we can provide a safer environment for our members and the general public.

We also secured further Commonwealth Government funding towards our new scoreboard at Freebody Oval, to go with the NSW Government funding received last year. The new scoreboard project is well underway, and will be ready for the commencement of the 2020/21 season.

Our local, state and federal politicians continue to be our biggest supporters, thanks as always to Queanbeyan Palerang Regional Council Mayor Mr Tim Overall, Deputy Premier of NSW Mr John Barilaro, and former Member for Eden-Monaro the Hon Dr Mike Kelly AM. You would have heard the news that Mike has resigned from federal parliament, on behalf of the club I thank him for all he has done over the years, most importantly he secured the funding for our pavilion back in 2011 – it's hard to imagine where we would be today without our great facility.

Thanks to all of our sponsors for their ongoing support, in particular our major sponsor Ian McNamee & Partners. Massive thanks to Macca and his board as always, their support is greatly appreciated. Also, the Queanbeyan Kangaroos Club who have been long time

financial partners of the QDCC. The club wouldn't survive without our generous sponsors and we urge all our members to support them whenever they can.

We're always on the lookout for new sponsors so if you any businesses that may be interested please get in touch.

I also must thank our hardworking committee who all play a vital role in the operations of our great club. We are all passionate about the Queanbeyan District Cricket Club and we all want to see the club to continue to improve – a strong, diverse committee ensures this.

Thanks to our curator Greg Dawes. His season started way back September when we hosted some preseason trials, right through to the grand finals in March. It looks as though this was Dawesy's last season as our curator, we thank him for his enormous contribution over the last 15 or so seasons delivering what are the best cricket wickets in the region. Also thanks to Batesy for his work on Brad Haddin Oval and assisting Dawsey throughout the season.

Looking to 2020/21, this will be a challenging season in terms of our club operations. We anticipate a significant reduction in sponsorship revenue due to the COVID-19 pandemic, which has affected the majority of businesses in the country. Unfortunately, this will have a flow on effect through all sporting organisations. Rest assured the committee are finalising budget forecasts for the coming season, and our current cash balance will ensure we are in a strong financial position moving in to 2020/21.

Thanks, and look forward to seeing you all next season.

Rohan Ditton President

# **Secretary's Report**

This year marks my 13th edition of the Club's Annual Report. Given this saying something new is always going to be tough.

But this season has pretty much been a season like no other. Yes, we expect that the weather will have some affect being an outdoor sport, but at the Christmas break no one had any idea how cricket and the world would be rocked to its core.

From an administrative perspective this has been another good year. A lot of work went into the various activities, hosting of the various representative matches, including the annual Defence Force carnival and the U15s Women's nationals etc.

On the downside, not only was the grand finals abandoned (gifting Wests premierships in all 5 grades) but this year the club was unable to hold the Annual Dinner and Presentation Night and our Golf Day.

Some of the positives from last season was we were able to upgrade our nets, thanks to the Sports Australia grant. We also acquired through a grant from NSW sport an AED.

### Across the White Line.

Firstly I would like to congratulate the following players for achieving personal milestones this season.

Matches		Runs		Wickets		
Peter Solway	405	Steve Cross	7014	Mark Solway	255	
Mark Solway	206	Vele Dukoski	5542	Tyler Van Luin	170	
Matt Harding	162	Adrian Brunker	4635	Michael Frost	150	
Brad Moore	152	Phil Moore	4416	Micah Manners	150	
Jimmy Dimarhos	112	Dom DiCampli	4167	Oliver Cheatle	115	
Ron Bates	103	Rob Regent	4093	Tristan Klower	100	
Vish Thakur	60	Dave Horsfall	3039	Yadwinder Prince	66	
Duane Bush	53	Micah Manners	2202	Harry O'Rourke	66	
		Tyler Van Luin	1746	Felix Bennett	53	
		Brad Falkenberg	1652	Ian Hamill	51	
		Matt Rebus	600			
		Harry O'Rourke	510			
		Sam Frost	503			

For many of our younger guns, hopefully this will be the start of achieving many more milestones in the upcoming years.

Apart from the personal milestones that are listed above, the following players achieved some special moments during the season:

- Maiden Centuries.
  - o James Coate (130)
  - o Tyler Van Luin (122)
  - o Matt Lawson (118 no)
  - o Les Harris (111 no)
  - Oskar Das (100 no)

### Bowling

With the ball, players who took their first 5 wkts or more in an innings –

- Brad Smith (6/75)
- o Harry O'Rourke (5/26)
- o Abhinash Kumar (5/27)
- $\circ$  Jake Smith (5/35)

Queanbeyan were well represented in the Cricket ACT awards. Tyler being named in the CACT team of the year. Harry O'Rourke won the Keith Carnall Medal for 3rd grade player of the year, Micah Manners the Dene Moore Medal for 4th grade player of the year and Will Graham for most wickets in 4th grade.

I would also like to acknowledge the 3rd grade juggernaut continues to take all before it, winning the One-day Cup competition and being joint T20 Cup winners. Unfortunately the team could not defend the FG Sides Cup (two day competition) due to the Covid shutdown. This teams feats are due to in main to the dedication of Peter Solway as well as the senior players in the team who are developing the next generation of 1st graders.

### Thank You

Of course none of what we achieved would be possible without the ongoing support of Mayor Tim Overall and all the staff at Queanbeyan Palerang Regional Council. I would also like to add that John Barilaro (Member for Monaro) and Dr Mike Kelly (Member for Eden-Monaro) are both huge supporters of the club. In some sad news, Dr Mike Kelly has resigned due to ongoing health issues and the club wishes him all the very best in the future.

I would also like to acknowledge and thank Greg Dawes for all the work he does in and around the club. Dawsey has kept our two main grounds in first class condition despite the occasional hurdle that is put in his way. As part of the curating team, it is great to work with Dawsey and he is always quick to acknowledge the work I do and provides me with valuable feedback.

I would like to thank all those who ran the kitchen on match days, such as Julie Solway, Ratsny Gillespie, Robyn Moore and Steve Moore. All the players really appreciate the effort you all put in. Also to Faye & Peter Solway for looking after the pavilion by keeping things nice and clean. Faye's involvement doesn't end there and they were great doing lunches and other jobs during our rep hosting responsibilities, to this end I will also include Steve and Robin Moore who were on hand to help out with the Womens U15s matches. Peta Harding is always ready to lend a hand as well.

### **The Future**

As I sit at my computer there is little point dusting off the Crystal Ball as times are so uncertain. However throughout these uncertain times, there are a number of pillars that the club has built its success on. We have a strong committee, also a very strong volunteer ethic and our members are always available to help out as required. We have very good community support and last but by means not least, we have great support from our council.

Cricket will continue and life will go on.

Ron Bates Honorary Secretary

### **Committee Meeting Attendance Register**

Name	No Meetings	Attendance	Apology
Rohan Ditton	6	4	2
Ron Bates	6	6	
Matt Harding	6	4	2
Michael O'Rourke	6	4	2
Stephen Cross	6	5	1
Dom DiCampli (apt 3/9)	4	4	
Chris Doyle	6	5	1
Mark Higgs	6	1	4
Phil Moore	6	6	
Stephen Moore	6	5	1
Mark Solway	6	5	1
Peter Solway	6	6	
Darren Southwell	6	0	6

# **Treasurer's Report**

The 2019-20 season saw the club post a loss of \$6,499 which is our third consecutive loss however substantially lower than the 2018-19 loss of 23,207.

The 2019-20 season saw several challenging situations unfold with environmental climatic conditions such as extreme heat and bushfire smoke resulting in several weeks of cricket being cancelled. The end of the season saw the commencement of the COVID-19 pandemic result in finals being cancelled, the club's golf day being cancelled resulting in no social function income and the club's presentation night being postponed. Several prearranged sponsorship agreements were not met during the 2019-20 season and the 2020-21 committee will need to discuss this with the applicable sponsors.

Major contributing factors to the club's financial performance this year were Sponsorship income reducing by 34%, Clothing income reducing by 47% as it is the club's second season of current arrangement, Fundraising income reducing by 68% when compared to last year's figures. Overall there was a 22% reduction in total income for 2019-20.

Several one-off costs for the season included:

- Machinery maintenance of a mower, wicket mowers and wicket rollers (\$6,260)
- Residual cost of the Freebody Net Upgrade project after Sports Australia funding (\$5,307)
- Donation to the Carbargo Hay Fund of \$2,110 following the devastating bushfire in January. This was based on the boundaries scored by QDCC during the morning matches (44 fours and 15 sixes) and afternoon matches (37 fours and 9 sixes) for the four grades playing that day with \$10 (fours) and \$50 (sixes) being agreed upon prior to the day's matches.

During the 2019-20 season the club received funding from the following bodies:

- Sports Australia providing \$50,000 grant funding towards the Freebody Nets upgrade project
- Australian Cricketers Association funding of \$8,500 to ACA members providing coaching services to the club.

Revenues totalled \$86,356 which was a decrease of \$24,483 on last season. Compared to last year the club had:

- an increase in Club memberships (\$111)
- revenue from Clothing Sales (\$7,410); Presentation Night (\$220) and Fundraising (\$2,140)
- decreases in revenue from Clothing Sales (-\$6,418); Sponsors (-\$5,973); ACTCA Grants (-\$450); Match Hosting (-\$65); Presentation Night (-\$205); Social Functions (-\$5,230); Fundraising income (-\$6111) and Interest (-\$142).

Expenses totalled \$92,855 which was a decrease of \$41,192 on last season. Compared to last year the club had a decrease in all expense accounts covering ACTCA Charges (-\$45); Administrative Costs (-\$4,711); Clothing (-\$7,446); Playing Equipment (-\$2,183); Coaching Costs (-\$3,500); Ground Hire and Equipment (-\$7,325); Match Hosting (-\$1,815); Presentation Night (-\$3,177); Presentation Trophies (-\$379); Social Functions (-\$2,687) and Fundraising Expenses (-\$4,403).

The club's Balance Sheet as at 31 May 2020, holds approximately \$46,650 in net assets, which is a decrease of \$6,500 since last year.

- Total Assets have decreased by \$9,684 from last season
  - Trade Debtor balance ended the year at \$23,027 however as most customers work to the regular fiscal year the majority of these funds are expected to be received in June 2020.
  - o Clothing Inventory decreased by \$1,131 and accounts for 21% of current assets
  - Plant and equipment items (Ezicover, Sightscreens and Super Soppers) were derecognised during the year resulting in a decrease of \$6,351 for Total Non Current Assets
- Total Liabilities have decreased by \$3,185 from last season
  - Trade Creditor balance ended the year at \$24,862 due to several invoices being received in May with the club expected to process most payments in June. This balance includes invoices related to the Electronic Scoreboard installation with outstanding balances due upon installation.
  - o Deferred Income is remaining balance of prepaid sponsorship
  - Two grants have been received for the Electronic Scoreboard/Facilities Enhancement Project. The NSW Office of Sport funding of \$20,000 has been used along with \$12,615 of the \$20,000 grant received from the former Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Cities and Regional Development in January 2020.
  - O During 2018-19, the club received a grant from NSW Office of Sport to be used to subsidise the purchase of club helmets meeting the new ICC standards. This funding was for both the senior and junior clubs with 18 players purchasing a club helmet during 2019-20.
  - The Queanbeyan-Palerang Regional Council's (QPRC) five-year Lease Agreement for the purchase of a mower continues to decrease with every monthly payment (\$12,079)
  - The pavilion upgrades previously completed using QPRC grant funding was completed in 2017-18 with a residual balance of \$340 remaining. The club will discuss with QPRC if this funding can be transferred for the Electronic Scoreboard project if required during the 2020- 21 season.

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic the committee has appointed several members to complete a review of the club's financial reports, commercial arrangements and budget for the upcoming season to ensure that the future financial viability of the club is maintained for future seasons especially during the current financial environment.

Thanks go to my family (Peta, Finnegan and Maxwell) for allowing me the time to fulfil my treasurer commitments and to the several committee and club members for their work liaising with sponsors, ACTCA and QPRC; and the many others who have organised, managed or assisted with the activities conducted by the club

Matt Harding Honorary Treasurer

Note: Financial records are not published in the public version

# **Major Award Winners**

**Mark Higgs Medal** 



**Tyler Van Luin** 

Queanbeyan Kangaroos Football Club Club Champion Trophy



**Tyler Van Luin** 

John Solway Spirit of Cricket Award



**Darren Southwell** 

Ian McNamee Trophy President's Award



Dr Mike Kelly AO

Malcolm Allen Memorial Trophy Clubperson of the Year



**Ron Bates** 

Luke Bush Memorial Trophy Outstanding Junior



Tom Kellar

Greg Mann Memorial Trophy Player's Player



**Micah Manners** 

Col Berry Shield Veterans Player of the Year



**Les Harris** 

Neil Bulger Trophy 1st Grade Batting Award



**Mark Solway** 

Garry Samuels Trophy 1st Grade Bowling Award



Tyler Van Luin

Rod Winchester Shield 2nd Grade Batting Award



**Phil Moore** 

Phill Moon Shield 2nd Grade Bowling Award



**Felix Bennett** 

Lloyd Buckley Shield 3rd Grade Batting Award



**Peter Solway** 

**Graeme Alexander Shield 3rd Grade Bowling Award** 



Harry O'Rourke

Stephen Cross Shield 4th Grade Batting Award



**Oskar Das** 

Winston McDonald Shield 4th Grade Bowling Award



**Micah Manners** 

James Martin Shield 5th Grade Batting Award



Riaz Uddin

Ron McGlashan Shield 5th Grade Bowling Award



**Daniel Clugston** 

# **Individual Achievements**

# Batting 1st Grade:

Dean Solway 633 @ 33.21 Tyler Van Luin 611 @ 35.94

### 2nd Grade:

Phil Moore 470 @ 39.17 Vish Thakur 451 @ 34.69

### 3rd Grade:

Dave Horsfall 436 @ 54.50 Peter Solway 390 @ 78.00

### 4th Grade:

Micah Manners 361 @ 30.08 Oskar Das 330 @ 36.67

### 5th Grade:

Riaz Uddin 287 @ 28.70 Daniel Clugston 248 2 20.67

### **Veterans:**

Les Harris 316 @ 105.33 Steve Moore 175 @ 43.75

### **Bowling**

### 1st Grade:

Tyler Van Luin 33 @ 21.76 Vele Dukoski 26 @ 23.15

### 2nd Grade:

Felix Bennett 24 @ 18.63 Yadwinder Prince 23 @ 20.43

### 3rd Grade:

Harry O'Rourke 29 @ 9.62 Jake Smith 28 @ 15.68

### 4th Grade:

Micah Manners 32 @ 13.34 Will Graham 31 @ 15.26

### 5th Grade:

Daniel Clugston 19 @ 16.16 Graeme Alexander 14 @ 12.86

### **Veterans:**

Bill Turner 8 @ 25.50 Martin Kennedy 7 @ 19.71

# Outstanding Achievements Centurions:

Phil Moore – 204\*, 123 Brad Falkenberg – 167 Dean Solway – 147 James Coate – 130 Dave Horsfall – 125 Tyler Van Luin – 122 Matt Lawson – 118 no Les Harris – 111 no Khye Ditton – 110 no Oskar Das – 100 no

### The Nervous 90's

Rob Regent – 94 Jono White – 92

### 5 wkts Innings:

Brad Smith – 6/75
Darren Southwell – 5/5
Harry O'Rourke – 5/26
Vele Dukoski – 5/26
Abhinash Kumar – 5/27
Balinder Singh Khillan – 5/28
Graeme Alexander – 5/34
Mark Higgs – 5/34
Jake Smith – 5/35
William Graham – 5/40 & 5/49
Tyler Van Luin – 5/46
Mark Solway – 5/79

### **Hat Tricks**

Brad Millynn Tristan Klower

# **2019-2020 Club Performances**

### **Top 10 Batting Performances**

(across all grades and ranked on total runs)

	Player	Mat	Inn	NO	Runs	HS	Ave	50's	100's
1	Solway, Dean	23	21	2	631	147	33.21	3	2
2	Van Luin, Tyler	22	20	3	611	122	35.94	3	1
3	Solway, Mark	21	19	7	520	82	43.33	4	0
4	Moore, Philip	15	14	2	470	204*	39.17	1	1
5	Thakur, Vish	18	17	3	455	85	32.50	3	0
6	Horsfall, David	12	10	2	436	125	54.50	4	1
7	O'Rourke, Harry	16	13	1	401	62	33.42	3	0
8	Falkenberg, Bradley	15	14	1	394	167	30.31	0	1
9	Solway, Peter	15	7	2	390	81*	78.00	5	0
10	Das, Oskar	17	15	4	385	100*	35.00	1	1

### **Top 10 Bowling Performances**

(across all grades and ranked on total wickets)

	Player	Mat	0	M	W	R	Ave	B/B	5Wi	10Wm
1	O'Rourke, Harry	16	126.1	20	37	357	9.65	5/26	1	0
2	Manners, Micah	19	171.3	49	33	452	13.70	4/19	0	0
3	Van Luin, Tyler	22	188.4	32	33	718	21.76	5/46	1	0
4	Brunker, Kai	16	145.3	28	32	443	13.84	4/40	0	0
5	Graham, William	19	193.1	47	31	473	15.26	5/40	2	0
6	Bennett, Felix	20	157	34	31	587	18.94	5/55	0	0
7	Smith, Jake	15	121.3	14	28	439	15.68	5/35	1	0
8	Southwell, Darren	16	155	42	26	463	17.81	5/5	1	0
9	Dukoski, Vele	19	146	15	26	602	23.15	5/26	1	0
10	Prince, Yadwinder	16	136.2	27	23	470	20.43	4/23	0	0

### **Top 10 All-Round Performances**

(across all grades and ranked on runs & wickets & fielding)

	Player	Runs	HS	Ave	Wkts	Ave	B/B	Fielding
1	Van Luin, Tyler	611	122	35.94	33	21.76	5/46	6c/1ro
2	O'Rourke, Harry	401	62	33.42	37	9.65	5/26	3c/1ro
3	Solway, Mark	520	82	43.33	19	36.05	5/79	17c/2ro
4	Manners, Micah	362	75*	30.17	33	13.70	4/19	7c/3ro
5	Dukoski, Vele	367	69	21.59	26	23.15	5/26	5c/1ro
6	Singh Khillan, Balinder	342	74	24.43	17	21.76	5/28	8c
7	Coate, James	356	130	39.56	14	18.29	4/28	2c
8	Higgs, Mark	359	81*	32.64	12	37.92	5/34	2c
9	Clugston, Daniel	280	55	21.54	19	16.16	3/5	13c/3ro
10	Ditton, Khye	302	110	30.20	14	18.79	2/16	5c

# **Keeping and Fielding Records**

(all grades)

	Player	Mat	Catches	Catches	Run Outs	Stumpings	Total
			(fielder)	(WK)			
1	Moore, Brad	18	0	14	3	6	23
2	Paton, Matt	17	7	6	0	9	22
3	Kellar, Tom	18	1	16	0	2	19
4	McCarten, Blake	15	1	14	0	4	19
5	Solway, Mark	21	17	0	2	0	19
6	Clugston, Daniel	18	13	0	3	0	16
7	Solway, Dean	23	12	0	2	0	14
8	McGann, Luke	16	0	6	3	4	13
9	Bridgen, Stuart	23	6	3	1	2	12
10	Manners, Micah	19	7	0	3	0	10

# Representative Honours & Special Awards

ACT Rockets (Open, Masters and Juniors)	Tyler Van Luin (Rising Star Award)
Australia Over 50s:	Peter Solway (capt)
ACT Over 50s – Veterans Cricket National Championships:	Michael Frost, Stephen Moore & Peter Solway
ACT Over 60s – Veterans Cricket National Championships:	Grant Butler
Konica T20 Cup Player of the Series:	Vele Dukoski
ACT Premier Cricket Team of the Year:	Tyler Van Luin
ACT Emerging Comets and Schools Representatives:	Monty Green, Ted Waterman, Fraser O'Rourke, Ansh Tiwary, Kai Brunker, Jake Smith, Sam Lever, Oscar Das, Jaskaran Singh, Archie Blaney-Brown, Harry O'Rourke, Blake McCarten, Callum Smith, Felix Bennett, Matt Rebus and Rory DiCampli
Keith Carnall Medal: (3rd grade Player of the Year)	Harry O'Rourke
Dene Moore Medal: (4th grade Player of the Year)	Micah Manners
4th grade Bowling Award:	Will Graham
ACT Junior Team of the Year:	Leo Hunter

# **Player Milestones**

# Matches

400

	400	
Michael Frost (587)	Graeme Alexander (478)	Stephen Cross (430)
	Peter Solway (405)	
Laura Martin (200)	300	Danier Carathana II (224)
James Martin (399)	Stephen Frost (384)	Darren Southwell (334)
	Ron McGlashan (327)	
G: F.1 (204)	200	W. I. D. I. (11 (274)
Simon Fahey (284)	Peter Jensen (278)	Vele Dukoski (274)
John Fern (272)	Adrian Brunker (268)	Peter Coleborne (254)
Aaron Thorn (249)	Rohan Ditton (244)	Jack McNamara (243)
Colin Crouch (240)	Michael Carruthers (239)	Dean Solway (238)
Mark Lynch (230)	John Bull (230)	Mark Higgs (227)
Phillip Moore (227)	Neil Bulger (221)	Ray Hatch (219)
Ian Hamill (216)	Rodney Winchester (211)	Michael Stachow (211)
Dom DiCampli (208)	Mark Solway (206)	
	150	G 1D (101)
Adam Heading (195)	Dean Southwell (192)	Col Berry (191)
Dean Mansfield (191)	Wayne Campbell (189)	Geoff McMurray (188)
Geoff Woods (182)	Robert Regent (180)	Andrew Bull (178)
Chris Doyle (176)	John Regent (174)	Brendan MacNamara (174)
Peter Newham (171)	Steve Bailey (169)	Graham Hannaford (169)
Michael Medved (167)	Daniel Quinn (166)	Jeremy Macdonald (166)
Dave Corcoran (166)	Dean Moore (164)	Damien Tongs (164)
Ben Stensrud (164)	Anthony Wynd (162)	Matt Harding (162)
Scott Bannerman (160)	Raglan Maddox (156)	Josh Gregory (156)
Vince Bulger (154)	Christopher Howe (154)	Brad Moore (152)
Alan Hodgson (151)	David Bourke (151)	Simon Mann (151)
I D11. (146)	100	D-1
Ian Black (146)	Michael Nairn (145)	Robert Farquharson (144)
Ryan Collier (143)	Daniel Clugston (143)	Terry Freebody (142)
Matt Jackson (142)	Marty Frost (142)	William Carters (142)
David Horsfall (141)	Simon Johnson (141)	Victor Forbes (139)
Tyler Van Luin (139)	Geoff McMahon (138)	Mick Kelly (138)
Les Coffey (137)	Lloyd Buckley (133)	Troy Drayton (133)
Rick Dibitonto (132)	A Clark (132)	Keith Norton (131)
Nathan Reid (130)	Chris Hamill (130)	Robert Warren (128)
Paul Wylks (128)	John Kelly (127) Will Graham (125)	Phil Higgs (127)
Greg Dawes (126)	Will Graham (125)	Guy Gillespie (124)
Paul Kowal (123)	Alex Page (121)	Micah Manners (121)
Nick Harvey (120)	Adam Wade (119)	Alan Bailey (119)
Colin Imrie (116)	Michael Spaseski (116)	Dave Hughes (115)
Chris Henry (114)	David Wenning (113)	John Duros (113) James Dimarhos (112)
Les Manwaring (112) Michael Sergent (110)	Jono Dean (112)	• • •
Michael Sargent (110) Fred Wilton (108)	Tony Bray (110) Simon McLoughlin (108)	Geoff Hague (109) Jeremy Bannerman (107)
Laks Shivakumar (107)	Ben Forbes (107)	Robby Davis (106)
Lea Hansen (105)	Sam Taylor (104)	Ray Heading (103)
Ron Bates (103)	Chris Hart (102)	Dave Sargent (102)
Kuii Dates (103)	CIIIIS Hait (102)	Dave Sargeill (102)

# Runs

# 11,000

Michael Frost (13246)		Peter Solway (11942)
	8,000	
	Stephen Frost (8930)	
	7,000	
Neil Bulger (7911)	Peter Coleborne (7037)	Stephen Cross (7014)
	6,000	1 , ,
Mark Higgs (6899)	Dean Solway (6344)	Peter Jensen (6214)
Graeme Alexander (6118)	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	Simon Fahey (6108)
,	5,000	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
John Bull (5993)	Vele Dukoski (5542)	James Martin (5395)
(,	4,000	(,
Rohan Ditton (4879)	Rod Winchester (4843)	Jono Dean (4828)
Terry Freebody (4799)	Adam Heading (4694)	Adrian Brunker (4635)
Phillip Moore (4416)	Dom DiCampli (4167)	Rob Regent (4093)
. , ,	Michael Carruthers (4087)	,
	3,000	
David Corcoran (3481)	Dean Mansfield (3475)	Ian Hamill (3346)
John Fern (3331)	Clarrie Hincksman (3286)	Aaron Thorn (3245)
Jack McNamara (3210)	Frank Nash (3190)	Graham Hannaford (3088)
Michael Stachow (3063)		Dave Horsfall (3039)
	2,500	
A Clarke (2927)	Wayne Campbell (2900)	Mark Solway (2876)
Michael O'Rourke (2821)	Matt Harding (2767)	Vince Bulger (2703)
Geoff Woods (2667)	Ben Stensrud (2657)	Ron McGlashan (2654)
Jason Swift (2635)	Peter Newham (2620)	Stephen Bailey (2570)
Keith Norton (2553)	Aaron Ayre (2547)	Ray Hatch (2538) Raglan Maddox (2509)
Simon Mann (2524)	2,000	Ragian Waddox (2309)
Lock Croscowy (2497)	*	Andrew Dull (2240)
Josh Gregory (2487) Laks Shivakumar (2340)	Ray Heading (2415) Daniel Quinn (2334)	Andrew Bull (2349) Les Manwaring (2325)
Greg Dawes (2312)	Jeremy Macdonald (2286)	Tony Wynd (2266)
Geoff McMurray (2262)	Ian Black (2236)	Neville Croker (2224)
Michael Spaseski (2207)	Micah Manners (2202)	John Regent (2151)
David Bourke (2086)		Clarrie Gribble (2002)
,	1,500	,
Jono White (1964)	Blake Dean (1937)	James Dimarhos (1875)
Marty Frost (1846)	Mal Wheeler (1808)	Ian Armour (1765)
Tyler Van Luin (1746)	Khye Ditton (1071)	Matt Cutler (1656)
Brad Falkenberg (1652)	Tom O'Connor (1586)	Michael Curtale (1575)
Michael Gilshenan (1532)	Balinder Singh (1526)	
	1,000	
	(current players only)	
Brad Moore (1343)	Cameron Edgar (1332)	Darren Southwell (1201)
Guy Gillespie (1075)		Paul Wylks (1000)

# Wickets

### 600

James Martin (651)

	500	
Darren Southwell (596)	Graeme Alexander (541)	Mark Lynch (526)
	400	
Ron McGlashan (498)	Mark Higgs (418)	Frank Nash (416)
John Fern (413)		John Bull (401)
	300	
Colin Crouch (387)	Neil Bulger (384)	Peter Jensen (369)
Tom O'Connor (366)	Vele Dukoski (336)	Alan Hodgson (329)
Dean Southwell (312)		Scott Bannerman (311)
	200	
Stephen Frost (275)	Mark Solway (255)	Winston McDonald (243)
Troy Drayton (233)	Peter Newham (223)	Daniel Clugston (220)
Dean White (219)	Phill Moon (219)	Vince Bulger (218)
Simon Fahey (217)	Michael Stachow (215)	Will Rogers (211)
	Simon Mann (201)	
	150	
Adam Heading (191)	Ian Black (176)	Lea Hansen (169)
Alex Page (160)	Clarrie Gribble (154)	Michael Frost (150)
	Micah Manners (150)	
	100	
	(current players only)	
Guy Gillespie (147)	Balinder Singh (138)	Rohan Ditton (134)
Simon Johnson (129)	Paul Wylks (128)	Khye Ditton (124)
Oliver Cheatle (115)		Tristan Klower (100)

# **Premiership Scorecards**

# 3rd Grade - One-day Cup Final

Queanbeyan vs Western Districts Venue: Freebody Oval Date: 1 December Toss: Western Districts

Umpires: P Edwards & R Noy

Wests		
Batsman	<b>How Out</b>	Runs
K Bhardwaj	c A Brunker b M O'Rourke	4
B Whyte	c A Brunker b H O'Rourke	10
K Muralietharan	run out (Solway)	46
K Johnstone	c & b P Solway	47
C Lillepruun	st B Moore b J Smith	4
R Narracott (c,v	v)c A Brunker b J Smith	0
M New	c B Moore b K Brunker	13
Z Cooke	c B Moore b P Solway	7
O Withers	not out	4
S Jaffary	b K Brunker	0
N Corbett	b Solway	3
EJ Marshall	dnb	
Sundries: (2b,	0lb, 0nb, 5w)	7

**FOW:** 15 (Whyte) 15 (Bhardwaj) 93 (Muralietharan) 112 (Lillepruun) 112 (Narracott) 113 (Johnstone) 124 (Cooke) 138 (New) 138 (Jaffary) 145 (Corbett)

145

### Bowling

M O'Rourke 6-0-1-16, H O'Rourke 8-0-1-42, D Vandenbroucke 5-0-0-32, J Smith 7-0-2-29, P Solway 7.3-1-3-16, K Brunker 3-0-2-8

### Queanbeyan

**Total: (36.3 overs)** 

Batsman	<b>How Out</b>	Runs
D Horsfall	c Marshall b Cooke	53
H O'Rourke	c Muralietharan b Cooke	18
D Bush	lbw Muralietharan	4
A Brunker	c Lillepruun b Cooke	7
M Rebus	not out	22
M O'Rourke	c Corbett b Marshall	22
K Brunker	not out	1
B Moore (w)	dnb	
M Frost	dnb	
P Solway (c)	dnb	
D Vandenbroud	cke dnb	
J Smith	dnb	
Sundries: (Oh	2lh (lmh 17sw)	10

Sundries: (0b, 2lb, 0nb, 17w) 19 Total: (31 overs) 5 wickets for 146

**FOW**: 57 (H O'Rourke) 73 (Bush) 89 (Horsfall) 101 (A Brunker) 136 (M O'Rourke)

**Bowling** 

E Marshall 7-1-1-26, S Jaffary 4-0-0-20, K Muralietharan 6-0-1-29, Z Cooke 8-0-3-31,

O Withers 3-0-0-16, N Corbett 3-0-0-22

Match Result: Queanbeyan won by 5 wickets

Player of the Match: D Horsfall

# First Grade Report

### John Gallop Cup Runners Up

The 2019/20 was another year that showed promise without seeing a lot of success. The first grade squad was built mainly of youth with the exception of a couple of older heads. Whilst we didn't take away any silverware it was exciting to see a young crop of players make their first grade debuts and improving their skills.

The one-day format was our most successful format of the year, where we again made the grand final only to be beaten by Weston Creek for the 2nd year running. The first game of the year started with a convincing victory over North Canberra Gungahlin. The return of Mark Higgs was a welcomed one with the veteran scoring 54 off 32 and taking 2-24 off his 10 overs. A partnership with Dean Solway (57) helped us to a score of 249. We then proceeded to bowl a weakened North Canberra side out for 126, just missing out on a double bonus point.

After finishing 3rd on the one-day ladder we played Western Districts in the semi-final at Chisolm oval. Things weren't looking good for us after losing 5-44. However, Tyler Van Luin and youngster Tom Kellar (48) turned the game on its head, combining for a partnership of 107, with Tyler scoring his maiden century for the club, 122 off 127 balls. Tyler then proceeded to take 2 wickets in his first two overs, finishing with and led the charge to bowl Wests out for 163, and a victory by 69 runs.

The grand final of the one-day cup was another disappointing one. Hopes were high at the innings break after putting 261 on the board, Van Luin leading the way once again with 73no. Weston Creek were able to chase our total down comfortably, making us runners up in the Gallop Cup for the 2nd year in row. Honourable mention to Vele Dukoski in Round 2 taking 5-26 off 8.2 overs.

The T20 competition was played on mixture of Sunday's and Thursday afternoons. We performed quite solidly throughout the round games and finished 4th on the ladder.

Unfortunately our semi-final at Philip Oval was washed out and no date was set aside to replay the game. As we were the lower seeded team, we were knocked out. Disappointing. There were many highs and lows in the Douglas Cup two-day competition. Round 4 of the Douglas Cup saw a well fought out victory, with Dean Solway (147) leading a chase of 305.

His 8th wicket partnership with newcomer this year Brad Smith of 88 made for a riveting game and a tight finish. Brad scored 19 off 70 balls and was able hang in with Dean to get us over the line and keep our finals run alive.

Round 6 of the Douglas Cup was another important game for us to ensure we could still make the top 4. Tyler Van Luin led the way with the ball, taking 5-46 off 22 overs and keeping Eastlake to a total of 286 when it looked as if it could have been a lot more. There were many contributions with the bat, including Mark Solway (82) and a great knock from young wicket keeper Blake McCarten, who got the boys home with 39 off 44, in his 4th first grade game. Help from Brad Smith again (19) saw us get home 8 down, in another nerve racking finish.

We had to win the last round of the Douglas Cup against Ginninderra in order to make the finals of the competition. Unfortunately we were unable to bowl them out for a reasonable total. Ginninderra were aware we had to win and left us 404 to chase in under 2 sessions.

We gave it a crack and fell 170 short. Honourable mention to James Dimarhos scoring 73 in the run chase. Other performances to mention included M Solway 5-79 off 27 and D Solway 123 in Round 2, and Brad Smith claiming his first five wicket haul for the club with 6-75 off 21 in Round 3.

Whilst we didn't win any silverware, there were many positives that could be taken from the season. We're confident we have a good crop of young players coming through, and hope with another year of experience our young side can step up and start winning competitions. Mark Solway

### **BATTING AVERAGES**

(minimum 150 runs)

Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
Dean Solway	23	21	2	631	147	33.21
Tyler Van Luin	22	20	3	611	122	35.94
Mark Solway	21	19	7	520	82	43.33
Vele Dukoski	19	17	0	367	69	21.59
Mark Higgs	12	12	1	359	81*	32.64
Tom Kellar	18	15	2	269	81	20.69
James Dimarhos	21	15	4	224	73	20.36

### **BOWLING AVERAGES**

(minimum 15 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Tyler Van Luin	188.4	32	33	718	21.76	5/46
Vele Dukoski	146	15	26	602	23.15	5/26
Mark Solway	186.2	24	19	685	36.05	5/79
Oliver Cheatle	97.2	9	16	412	25.75	3/15
Brad Smith	130.1	24	16	494	30.88	6/75

# **Second Grade Report**

### T/20 Cup Joint Premiers, One-day Cup & Campbell Cup Runners up

This season, I was given the opportunity by the committee to take on the captaincy role.

2nd grade, because of the nature of grade cricket, always tends to have a fairly high turnover in numbers which at times doesn't make managing the team easy. This year we had 25 players across all 3 formats with everyone contributing. We had great group that enjoyed playing together.

Overall, 2nd grade had an excellent season. We made the grand final in all 3 formats but unfortunately we only had the chance to play in 1 of those finals, but still a great result none the less.

### **One-day Competition.**

Despite a loss against Ginninderra in the last round, we finished in 3rd spot, so we faced ANU in the semi-final.

ANU opted to bat first and we were able to bowl them out for 174. In reply we were in trouble at 4/33. However Cam Edgar and I added 100 runs in good time to steady the ship. After I was dismissed, Cam (82 no from 85 balls) continued to dominate the attack and we passed their score in just under 41 overs.

In the final, we just had an off day and were bowled out for 151. Wests had no problem with the target, knocking the runs off in just over 24 overs.

### T20 Cup

We had little trouble making the final by firstly belting Eastlake and then dispatching Tuggeranong.

However, what became a sign of the times, weather and other circumstances saw the T20 final abandoned with a ball being bowled.

### **Campbell Cup 2-day Competition**

In the two day matches, we began to shine. We won two matches outright, two on 1st innings. Circumstances effected two other matches which ended in draws. I won't talk about the loss against Eastlake, We finished second and took on Creek at home.

Creek won the toss and had no hesitation in sending us in. We slumped to 4/38, but the middle order put some respectability into the score. However we then lost 3/3 at the end and were bowled out for 155. Our bowlers then stepped up to the mark and we had them 6/54.

Creek's tail held firm for a while, but they couldn't hold on for long and we bowled them out for 113. Still Creek's captain did not want to give up and the match continued into a second innings. We got off to a promising start, but with the score on 24 we lost our first wicket then two more wickets 2 runs later and then not long after another two and we were 5/45. Throughout all this, Balinder, who opened, help firm and guided us through to 5/61 from 47 overs when Creek conceded.

We were set down to play Western Districts in the final, however due to COVID-19 and a decision to cancel the final meant a sad end to the season with Wests being awarded the premiership.

### **Summary**

I would like to congratulate Felix Bennett for taking out the Phil Moon Bowling Award. He works hard at his bowling and the results show. If Felix continues his improvement he will be on his way to a regular 1st grade spot in the not too distant future.

In wrapping up, not only would I like to thank all the players that played 2nd grade this year, I would like to thank all those who were part of putting a competitive team on the park each match, such as the selectors and coaching members.

I would like to thank Mum and Dad (Robyn and Steve) for providing lunches and afternoon teas at our home games over the whole season. Finally I would like to thank my wife, Anna, for her support and patience right throughout the season.

Phil Moore

### **BATTING AVERAGES**

(minimum 150 runs)

Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
Phil Moore	15	14	2	470	204*	39.17
Vish Thakur	17	16	3	451	85	34.69
Brad Falkenberg	8	8	1	305	167	43.57
Nirmal Singh	18	17	2	295	80	19.67
Balinder Singh Khillan	10	10	1	283	74	31.44
Matt Lawson	8	10	2	280	118*	35.00
James Coate	7	8	2	244	130	40.67
Blake McCarten	10	11	0	225	79	20.45
Cam Edgar	10	8	2	194	82*	32.33
Abhinash Kumar	10	8	1	185	48*	26.43

### **BOWLING AVERAGES**

(minimum 15 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Felix Bennett	125	26	24	447	18.63	4/55
Yadwinder Prince	136.2	27	23	470	20.43	4/23
Callum Smith	102.1	9	19	424	22.32	4/32
Darren Southwell	107	25	16	336	21.00	3/16
Tristan Klower	115	16	15	447	29.80	3/18

# **Third Grade Report**

One-day Cup Winners, T20 Cup Joint Winners, FG Sides Cup Runners Up



**One-day Cup Team** 

Back Row: Dave Horsfall, Brad Moore (w), Khye Ditton, Harry O'Rourke, Jake Smith, Michael O'Rourke Front Row: Duane Bush, Matt Rebus, Peter Solway, Michael Frost, Daniel Vandenbroucke, Adrian Brunker

3rd Grade team had an excellent 2019-20 season winning the 1 day competition and making the other 2 grand finals only to have those games washed out or not played due to COVID-19.

30 players took the field for 3rd Grader across the 3 formats with our ages ranging from 14 up to 55. The season started with a new bowling line up due to the promotion of Felix Bennett and Callum Smith from the previous season with Raheem Abdul playing the season in Goulburn. Blake McCarten also took the step to second grade and was rewarded for a fine season by playing 1st grade

There were many outstanding contributions throughout the season. David Horsfall had another strong year scoring 436 runs @ 54, Harry O'Rourke made 345 @ 43 and Mathew Rebus has started to realise his potential scoring 224 runs @ 32. The bowling group was dominated by young spinners with the 3 leading wicket takers being Harry O'Rourke 29 wickets @ 9, Jake Smith 28 wickets @ 15 and Kai Brinker 19 wickets @ 13. Rory DiCampli also showed strong improvement throughout the summer taking 10 wickets @ 22 whilst Daniel Vandenbroucke improved every game taking 16 wickets @ 20.

It was extremely exciting once again to see our young brigade improve throughout the season. Harry O'Rourke had a breakthrough season with both bat and ball and will put pressure on the higher grade players next season. Jake Smith and Kai Brunker are 2 outstanding talents bowling leg spinners and improving very quickly with the bat. I look forward to following their progress next season and beyond. Rory DiCampli and Matty Rebus are 2 more young players who will play higher grade cricket should they continue to put the work in to improve their games.

A big thank you to Mark Higgs for his support and coaching the boys this summer.

Thank you also to our selectors for always getting 12 players on the paddock. And to our curator, Greg Dawes for producing our wickets this season. A final thank you to my fellow senior players in Dave Horsfall, Michael Frost, Michael O'Rourke, Dom DiCampli, Michael Stachow, Robert Regent and Adrian Brunker. They all play a vital role in making our season enjoyable and keeping our side competitive.

A special mention to Darren Southwell also. Southie has been an outstanding 2nd grade bowler for a number of years and it was great to see him pass on advice to our young players in games at the back end of the season. His willingness to encourage and support is what makes our club the successful club that it is today. Our strength in 3rd Grade is on the back of the guys named above putting back in for the younger generation.

Looking forwards, I believe our club is in an extremely strong position for the coming years due to the number of quality juniors coming through mixed with experienced cricketers still involved with our club. This along with the quality of the facilities we are fortunate enough to have to play our cricket on each week holds the club in good stead.

Peter Solway

### **BATTING AVERAGES**

(minimum 150 runs)

Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
Dave Horsfall	12	10	2	436	125	54.50
Peter Solway	13	7	2	390	81*	78.00
Harry O'Rourke	9	9	1	345	62	43.13
Matt Rebus	10	8	1	224	89	32.00
Michael O'Rourke	10	7	3	163	52*	40.75
Dom Di-Campli	5	4	0	151	76	37.75

### **BOWLING AVERAGES**

(minimum 15 wickets)

Name	Overs	Maidens	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Harry O'Rourke	100	15	29	279	9.62	5/26
Jake Smith	121.3	14	28	439	15.68	5/35
Kai Brunker	93.3	20	19	248	13.05	4/40
Daniel Vandenbroucke	88	12	16	330	20.625	2/13

# **Fourth Grade Report**

## T20 Cup Joint Winners, Ainslie Cup & One day Cup Runners up

The 4<sup>th</sup> grade season for 2019-20 should be considered a success as the side made it to the grand finals of all three formats of the game. With a mix of experienced and seasoned players and young junior players making their grade debut, the team making the grand finals was a great reward. Unfortunately we came up against a Western Districts side that was too good for us in the one-day final. We were joint premiers with Western Districts in the T20 given the match was abandoned due to rain. Lastly we were unable to play Western Districts in the grand final of the 2 day competition given the restrictions and safety concerns for Covid 19, with Western Districts crowned premiers.

I must admit, I actually enjoyed captaining the 4th Grade players during the season, given the youth of the side, with a few older (not necessarily wiser) players. The captaincy came my way as Adrian Brunker relinquished the role about 5 rounds in to the season given Kai Brunker moved to 3's and other commitments that prevented him from playing regularly. We played pretty consistent cricket throughout the season in all forms of the game. We did generally 'Captain by Committee' and for that I must thank and recognise the assistance of Ditts, Matt Harding, Matt Paton and Jenno.

As mentioned we had a very young side with many playing their first season of grade, while still continuing with the Junior cricket. Players that took to the field regularly included Oskar Das, Ansh Tiwary, Elijah Brennan, Archie Blaney-Brown, Kai Brunker, Leo Hunter, Jaskaran Singh and Sam Lever. All players mentioned above had at least one innings or bowling effort that contributed significantly to team success including Oskar's maiden grade century, Ansh Tiwary's couple of quick paced 50's, Elijah's intent to score and Sam Lever's ability to consistently take wickets in his short bowling spells.

At this point, I would like to thank Sam's mum, Jo. She was always prepared to give a hand wherever it was needed especially at the end of play in helping pack things up. I hope that she becomes a permanent member of the Bluebags Supporters Group.

The team benefited from having experienced and season players contribute at different stages of the season. Micah Manners had an outstanding season with both the bat and the ball, Jono White at the top of the order, Khye Ditton with his aggressive hitting which included a century, and Will Graham who bowled plenty of overs and took the most wickets in 4th Grade across the competition. I would also like to thank a number of players that came up from 5's at different times during the season including Simon 'The Pom' Johnson, David Langston, Aaron Thorn and Adam Couch.

I would like to take the opportunity to those involved in supporting and getting the teams onto the field's week in week out. Frosty and Brunks for their work on the Selection Committee ensuring each grade had full compliments. The work of Dawsey, Batesy and Solid in preparing three wickets each week and all those wickets for the representative games, a great effort. Lastly the Committee, including the Executive Committee, for all the off-field work that goes into running a Club.

Stephen Cross

# **BATTING AVERAGES**

(minimum 125 runs)

Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	H.S.	Ave
Micah Manners	18	15	3	361	75*	30.08
Oskar Das	15	13	4	330	100*	36.67
Jono White	12	12	2	286	92	28.60
Khye Ditton	9	9	2	238	110*	34.00
Eli Brennan	10	10	1	216	56	24.00
Ansh Tiwary	6	7	0	189	83	27.00
Adrian Brunker	5	5	0	162	64	32.40
Rohan Ditton	7	6	1	158	48	31.60
Steve Cross	17	12	4	154	31*	19.25
Matt Harding	11	11	0	132	43	12.00

# **BOWLING AVERAGES**

(minimum 10 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Micah Manners	162.3	46	32	427	13.34	4/19
Will Graham	193.1	47	31	473	15.26	5/40
Jaskaran Singh	114	37	18	336	18.67	3/6
Sam Lever	54.2	14	15	141	9.40	4/9
Kai Brunker	52	8	13	195	15.00	3/18

# Fifth Grade Report



Back Row: Matt O'Brien, Luke McGann, Adam Couch, Peter Jensen, Aaron Thorn, Simon Johnson
Daniel Clugston (capt), Riaz Uddin
Front Row: Callum O'Brien, Ted Waterman, Leo Hunter, Jaskarin Singh

It was another good year the 5s side considering all that was happening around us.

During the season, we had a number of matches where we dug deep to win or lost in a nail biter, but for me the biggest disappointment was our last match of the season, the semi-final against Weston Creek. In what should have been a very evenly contested match, it ended in a somewhat farcical situation. The umpire called the match off, with still 3 overs to be bowled. Enough said about that.

This year I was given the honour to captain the team. As usual with being the bottom grade, there were new faces and some regulars as well. Yippa was one of the usual suspects backing up for another season, along with Thorny, Riaz, Jenno, Simon "Pozzie" Johnson and Adam Couch. Matt O'Brien returned this year with his son Callum, and Luke McGann settled in for a full season. We also welcomed a number of promising juniors into the fold with Leo Hunter and Sam Waterman becoming regulars in the team.

I think everyone that played for 5s throughout the year enjoyed themselves and each other's company. Thanks to all the juniors who filled in when necessary.

Thanks to everyone who played throughout the year. Everyone was willing to contribute to the team, not only on the field but off it with umpiring, scoring and covers etc.

I would like to make special mention of Riaz Uddin. Riaz was our top run scorer this year. Not only did he contribute when we needed it most, it was very entertaining to watch.

Bowling wise. Well that was me. I really did superbly all year . Nearly everyone that had a bowl took at least 1 wicket, all of which were a valuable contribution at the time.

Overall everyone that played has showed a keenness to play on next year. I'm certainly no different. Bring on 20/21!

Daniel Clugston

## **BATTING AVERAGES**

(minimum 100 runs)

Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	H.S	Ave
Riaz Uddin	14	11	1	287	75	28.70
Daniel Clugston	17	13	1	248	55	20.67
Aaron Thorn	10	9	1	175	73	21.88
Peter Jensen	7	6	2	161	43	40.25
Luke McGann	15	13	2	161	35	14.64
Leo Hunter	11	8	0	150	62	18.75
Callum O'Brien	14	11	4	110	33*	15.71
Simon Johnson	8	5	0	107	53	21.40
Adam Couch	7	4	1	102	57*	34.00

# **BOWLING AVERAGES**

(minimum 10 wickets)

(								
Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B		
Clugston, Daniel	86.3	9	19	307	16.16	3/5		
Alexander, Graeme	64.3	14	14	180	12.86	5/34		
O'Brien, Matt	57	4	14	203	14.50	2/12		

# **Veterans Cricket Report**

This year saw the inaugural Greybaggers vs Canberra City Cricket Club charity event. Lawrie Kirk floated the idea by me at the end of the 2018/19 season to have a social match against his Saturday club to raise money for Motor Neuron Disease. The genesis of the event was when one of Lawrie's team mates, has a sister who was diagnosed with MND a while back, suggested to him that a social match between the two clubs would be a great idea, not only to raise some money for MND research, but also to build a bond between the two clubs.

So it came to pass that the match was organised for 20 October at Rockley Oval. It was a great day even though the Canberra City boys came away with bragging rights. Everyone agreed that we will add this event to our annual calendar.

The season started with Queanbeyan again entering two teams into the Vets Competition, the Greybaggers and the Silver Foxes. However despite having nearly 40 names 'on the books' it was a struggle for each match to be able to field one team, let alone two. I guess it was kinda like Murphy's Law, what could go wrong did go wrong particularly regards player availability. One week we struggle to field one team then the next everyone was available.

#### Silver Foxes Report

Anyway before pulling the pin we were able to play a few games. Despite not being competitive we played our best and had some really enjoyable matches. The Foxes best outing was against Creeky Knees at Rockley despite only having 10 players.

So thanks to all those who were part of the Silver Foxes over the past two seasons. But that is not the end of the Foxes completely, the Foxes will continue in the future in some capacity.

#### Ron Bates

#### Greybaggers Report

Season 2019/2020 will surely go down as one of the craziest cricket season ever. Having played the game for approximately 40 years, this season was the first time in my career that a game had been called off due to poor air quality caused by the terrible bush fires that took place in December and January. Just when you think you've seen everything the season is brought to a premature end thanks to the coronavirus pandemic, the likes of which the world has never seen before or will likely ever see again.

On the field the Greybaggers had a good season finishing runners up to the strong Norths Gold Eagles team.

It was our first season of Veterans cricket without the much loved Jim Martin taking the field. While Jim was battling health issues his presence was always with the team on the field. We all look forward to Jimmy returning to the field in the very near future.

There were a number of highlights in what was an enjoyable season for the Greybaggers. In 2019/2020 all teams were evenly matched which led to a number of close competitive matches throughout the season. One of the highlights of the season was a thriller when we beat Eastlake by two runs in a game that went down to the very last ball.

My personal highlight came in the final game of the season against the eventual premiers North Canberra on a particularly sticky wicket at Googong.

Losing the toss we were sent into bat the likes that most of us hadn't seen since the eighty's and nineties. With balls on a good length cannoning into the body the guys did a tremendous job to set a target of 152 runs. Norths were never in the game and were bowled out for 97.

Having played many games with Stephen Cross in the nineties it was great to see that nothing has changed as we watched him guts in out for 91 balls scoring an unbeaten 40 runs.

When it comes to individual performances there was one clear standout. Les Harris' performance with the bat was outstanding. Les compiled 316 runs from 7 innings at an average 105.33. The highlight of his season was a masterful 111 not out against Canberra Masters. Not bad for a guy who, until about 5 years ago, had not played a competitive game of outdoor cricket. Remarkable.

One of the pleasing things was the contributions by everyone who was asked to play this year. Whether it was with the bat, the ball or in the field every player contributed to an enjoyable season and I look forward to seeing everyone return next season to do it all again.

It was great to see some grade players who now qualify for Veterans making themselves available this season. It is hoped that many more past Bluebag players make the move into Veterans in future years.

A very big thank you from all the Greybaggers as well as all other teams in the Veterans competition to Ron Bates. It has been said many times in the past that without your efforts the competition would not proceed. I have seen firsthand this year that that statement is 100% true.

Finally as a reluctant captain I would like to thank all Greybaggers for making my role an easy one by providing support throughout the season. See you all again next season.

Many thanks Ian Hamill

## **BATTING AVERAGES**

(minimum 75 runs)

Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	H.S	Ave
Les Harris	7	8	5	316	111*	105.33
Steve Moore	6	6	2	175	47*	43.75
Ian Hamill	5	5	1	89	55*	22.25
Michael Frost	3	3	2	81	40*	81.00
Grant Butler	6	6	3	75	31	25.00

# **BOWLING AVERAGES**

(minimum 5 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Bill Turner	52	12	8	204	25.50	3/15
Martin Kennedy	30	2	7	138	19.71	3/22
Les Harris	18	4	5	39	7.80	4/15
Michael Frost	8.4	0	5	25	5.00	3/17
Ian Hamill	21	1	5	91	18.20	2/17

# **Club Records**

# **Club Championships**

(TE Rolfe Cup) 1936-1937, 1957-1958, 1958-1959, 1959-1960 1989-1990, 1991-1992, 2009-2010, 2016-2017

## 1st Grade

### **Douglas Cup Premierships**

1927-1928, 1928-1929, 1935-1936, 1939-1940, 1957-1958, 1980-1981, 1982-1983, 1985-1986, 1986-1987, 1987-1988, 1990-1991, 1991-1992, 2009-2010, 2010-2011, 2011-2012

#### **Minor Premiers**

1927-1928, 1928-1929, 1934-1935 1939-1940, 1957-1958 (A & R Construction Trophy) 1982-1983, 1987-1988, 1989-1990, 1991-1992, 2013-2014

#### **One-Day Competitions**

(Est 1983) 1986-1987, 1987-1988, 1992-1993, 1993-1994, 1997-1998 (Konica Cup) 2001-2002, 2009-2010 (John Gallop Cup) 2010-2011, 2011-2012, 2013-2014, 2015-2016

#### **Twenty20 Competition**

2008-2009, 2009-2010 (Konica Minolta Regional Cup) 2011-2012, 2015-16

## Sunday League

1989-1990

# Twilight Competition (1976 to 1997)

1981-1982, 1983-1984, 1987-1988, 1988-1989, 1989-1990, 1990-1991, 1991-1992, 1993-1994, 1995-1996, 1996-1997

SCG Country Cup 2011-2012

## **Team Records**

Highest Team Score (2 day):	728	vs Ginninderra	1985-1986
Lowest Team Score (2 day):	13	vs Duntroon	1923-1924
Highest Team Score (1 day):	8/369	vs City and Suburban	2006-2007
#Lowest Team Score (1 day):	59	vs Tuggeranong	1992-1993
Highest Team Score (T/20):	5/224	vs Ginninderra	2007-2008
#Lowest Team Score (T/20):	68	vs Tuggeranong	2010-2011

<sup>#</sup> does not include reduced over matches

### **Individual Records**

	·	
1139	J. Swift	1999-2000
71.44	P. Solway	1989-1990
339	P. Solway vs ANU	1989-1990
147	J Dean vs Wagga Wagga	2009-2010
108*	J Dean vs ACT U/19	2011-2012
63	N Croker	1929-1930
7.81	R. Flockton	1974-1975
9/29	L Manwaring vs Turner	1962-1963
14/66	TH O'Connor vs Kingston	1947-1948
	(6/43 & 8/23)	
7/31	DG Southwell vs Weston	2004-2005
	Creek	
4/14	V Dukoski vs Eastlake	2011-2012
52	A. Ayre (38c, 14st)	2011-2012
6	M. Carruthers (6c)	1983-1984
7	JW McNamara (4c, 3st)	1952-1953
	M Carruthers (6c, 1st)	1990-1991
21	B Dean	2013-2014
5	M Wheeler	1962-1963
	G Hannaford	1985-1986
	A Heading	2001-2002
	J Dean	2008-2009
	71.44 339 147 108* 63 7.81 9/29 14/66 7/31 4/14 52 6 7	71.44 P. Solway 339 P. Solway vs ANU 147 J Dean vs Wagga Wagga 108* J Dean vs ACT U/19 63 N Croker 7.81 R. Flockton 9/29 L Manwaring vs Turner 14/66 TH O'Connor vs Kingston (6/43 & 8/23) 7/31 DG Southwell vs Weston Creek 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 21 B Dean 5 M Wheeler G Hannaford A Heading

<sup>\*</sup> not out

#### **Best Partnerships**

Dest i ai theisinps								
Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Opponent	Season				
1st	202	V Dukoski (100) & M Spaseski (95)	North Canberra Gungahlin	2017-2018				
2nd	228	M Frost (164) & P Solway (119)	Ginninderra	1985-1986				
3rd	346	P Solway (211) & R Regent (123)	Weston Creek	1990-1991				
4th	237	D Solway (116) & V Dukoski (135)	West's UC	2017-2018				
5th	213	R Regent (123) & J Robson (120)	South's	1990-1991				
6th	173	R Farquharson (73) & C Henry (80)	City	1984-1985				
7th	110	Mark Solway (50) & Guy Gillespie (50)	Weston Creek	2014-2015				
8th	110	L Shivakumar (99) & M Solway (38)	ANU	2012-2013				
9th	186	M Thornton (97) & M Carruthers (112)	Ginninderra	1985-1986				
10th	85	D Rootes (24) & DG Southwell (63*)	West's UC (GF)	2011-2012				

## **Fastest Century**

Vele Dukoski 100no (51 balls) vs North Canberra Gungahlin 2017-2018

**Quickest Century Partnership** 

1st Wicket 35 Minutes Vele Dukoski & Michael Spaseski 2017-2018

## 2nd Grade

(Est 1927)

#### **Campbell Cup Premierships**

1929-1930, 1960-1961, 1976-1977, 1989-1990, 1992-1993, 2009-2010, 2012-2013

#### **One-Day Competition**

(Est 1983) 1988-1989, 1991-1992, 2018-2019

#### **Twenty20 Competition**

2007-2008, 2010-2011, 2012-2013, 2013-2014 2015-2016, 2018-2019, 2019-2020\*

#### **Individual Records**

Best Batting Average:	65.69	P. Coleborne	2010-2011
Most Runs In A Season:	854	P. Coleborne	2010-2011
Highest Individual Score:	204*	P Moore	2019-2020
Best Bowling Average:	8.43	P. Moon	1972-1973
Most Wickets in a Season:	65	P. Moon	1972-1973
Best Bowling Performance:	10-17	R. Kelly	1962-1963

## 3rd Grade

(Est 1951)

#### **FG Sides Memorial Trophy Premierships**

1952-1953, 1969-1970, 1982-1983, 2009-2010, 2011-2012, 2014-2015, 2015-2016, 2016-2017, 2017-18

#### **One-Day Competition**

(Est 1983)

1985-1986, 1992-1993, 2012-2013, 2013-2014, 2014-2015, 2015-2016, 2016-2017, 2017-2018, 2018-2019, 2019-2020

#### **Twenty20 Competition**

2014-2015, 2015-2016, 2017-18, 2018-2019, 2019-2020\*

## **Individual Records**

Best Batting Average:	123.60	P Solway	2014-2015
Most Runs In A Season:	749	G. Hannaford	2000-2001
Highest Individual Score:	213*	M. Phelps	2016-2017
Best Bowling Average:	5.41	A. Hodgson	1966-1967
Most Wickets in a Season:	65	W. Rogers	1973-1974
Best Bowling Performance:	8-18	S. Bannerman	1988-1989

## 4th Grade

(Est 1969)

### **Ainslie District Cricket Club Trophy Premierships**

1989-1990, 2006-2007, 2008-2009, 2017-2018, 2018-2019

### **One-Day Competition**

(Est 1983) 1988-1989, 2009-2010, 2017-2018, 2018-2019

#### **Twenty20 Competition**

2016-2017, 2018-2019, 2019-2020\*

#### **Individual Records**

Best Batting Average:	106.25	P. Solway	2009-2010
Most Runs In A Season:	630	P. Solway	2006-2007
Highest Individual Score:	177	I. Hamill	1999-2000
Best Bowling Average:	8.17	F. Strammandinoli	1988-1989
Most Wickets in a Season:	53	K. Ditton	2018-2019
Best Bowling Performance:	7-35	P. Newham	2008-2009

# 5th Grade

(Est 1972)

### **Major Premierships**

 $1973-1974,\, 1996-1997,\, 2010-2011,\, 2013-2014,\, 2015-2016,\, 2017-2018$ 

#### **One-Day Competition #**

(1984 - 2005)

1986-1987, 1993-1994, 1996-1997, 2000-2001, 2001-2002

#### **Twenty20 Competition**

2007-2008

### **Individual Records (Post 2005)**

Best Batting Average:	66.00	Dom DiCampli	2017-2018
Most Runs In A Season:	768	Peter Jensen	2013-2014
Highest Individual Score:	162*	Jono White	2017-2018
Best Bowling Average:	4.12	Troy Drayton	2015-2016
Most Wickets in a Season:	41	Troy Drayton	2015-2016
Best Bowling Performance:	7/7	John Fern	2012-2013

<sup>(# 2005-06 – 5</sup>th grade was restructured into a one-day game competition)

#### **Individual Records (Pre 2005)**

Best Batting Average:	113.25	N. Bulger	1996-1997
Most Runs In A Season:	906	N. Bulger	1996-1997
Highest Individual Score:	204	N. Bulger	1996-1997
Best Bowling Average:	8.98	R. Saddler	1973-1974
Most Wickets in a Season:	45	V. Forbes	2000-2001
Best Bowling Performance:	9/100	H. Greenwell	1991-1992

## 6th Grade

(Est 1994) **Premierships** 1994-1995

## **Individual Records**

Best Batting Average:	103.7	N. Bulger	1994-1995
Most Runs In A Season:	726	N. Bulger	1994-1995
Highest Individual Score:	160	N. Bulger	1994-1995
Best Bowling Average:	10.89	R. Heading	1994-1995
Most Wickets in a Season:	28	R. Heading	1994-1995
Best Bowling Performance:	5-27	V. Forbes	1994-1995

# **Veterans Competitions**

Over 40's

(1990-91 to 2000-01)

Premierships

1994-1995

1996-1997

1997-1998

(currently no individual records exist)

## Over 50's

(Est 2015)

### **Team Records**

Highest Team Score:	8 dec 259	vs Canberra Masters	2019-2020
#Lowest Team Score:	69	vs Northern Gold Eagles	2019-2020

<sup>#</sup> does not include reduced over matches

## **Individual Records**

Best Batting Average:	105.33	L Harris	2019-2020
Most Runs In A Season:	316	L Harris	2019-2020
Highest Individual Score:	111*	L Harris	2019-2020
Best Bowling Average:	5.25	J Fern	2015-2016
Most Wickets in a Season:	9	K Bridgen	2017-2018
		J Fern	2018-2019
Best Bowling Performance:	4/5	J Martin	2018-2019
Most Dismissals Season (W/K):	8	R Rose	2018-2019
Most Catches Season (Fielder):	4	W Pash/J Fern	2018-2019
		L Kirk	2019-2020
Most Run-outs Season:	3	M. Kennedy	2016-2017

## **Best Partnerships**

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Opponent	Season
1st	87	S Moore – P Somerville	Silver Foxes	2018-2019
2nd	81	S Moore – I Hamill	Blue Eagles	2018-2019
3rd	65	M Harrison – L Harris	Silver Foxes	2018-2019
4th	61	L Harris – R Blewitt	Canberra Masters	2019-2020
5th	45	L Harris – L Kirk	Gold Eagles	2019-2020
6th	44	L Harris – J Fern	Canberra Masters	2019-2020
7th	44	W Pash – G Butler*	Gold Eagles	2018-2019
8th	46	R Calvert – J Fern	Canberra Masters	2016-2017
9th	34*	R Bates – B Turner	Northern Eagles Gold	2017-2018
10th		No partnerships of 25 runs or greater		

# Women's

## Lynn O'Meara

(Est 1984) **Premierships** 

1984-1985

## **Individual Records**

Best Batting Average:	128.0	E Preston	2007-2008
Most Runs In A Season:	491	L Cook	1984-1985
Highest Individual Score:	108*	L Cook	1984-1985
Best Bowling Average:	5.33	L Cook	1984-1985
Most Wickets in a Season:	49	L Cook	1984-1985
Best Bowling Performance:	5-0	H. Jones	2002-2003

## **Best Partnerships**

V	Vkt	Runs	Batsmen	Opponent	Season
1s	st	143	V Picker (62) & T Wallace (59)	Tuggeranong	2008-2009
2r	nd	110	H Jones (50*) & J Morris (55)	North Canberra Gungahlin	2004-2005
3r	d	86	V Picker (55) & E Preston (48)	Eastlake	2006-2007
4t	h	97	E Preston (82*) & J Knight (41)	Tuggeranong	2007-2008
5t	h	50	J Morris (36) & K Mollison (6)	North Canberra Gungahlin	2005-2006
6t	h	38	V King (26*) & E Parkinson (0)	Great Impressions	2009-2010
7t	h	50	V Picker (32*) & A Baker (15)	North Canberra Gungahlin	2005-2006
8t	h	84	V Picker (22) & K Mollison (33)	ANU	2004-2005

## Glenda Hall

(Est 2009)

## **Individual Records**

Best Batting Average:	26.0	Sina Leis	2009-2010
Most Runs In A Season:	80	Georgie Leahey-Butler	2009-2010
Highest Individual Score:	39	Georgie Leahey-Butler	2009-2010
Best Bowling Average:	13.65	Kirsten Frkic	2009-2010
Most Wickets in a Season:	6	Kirsten Frkic	2009-2010
Best Bowling Performance:	3/7	Kirsten Frkic	2009-2010

# **Best Partnerships**

Wkt	Runs	Batsmen	Opponent	Season
1st	40	G Leahey-Butler (20*) & K Frkic (55)	North Canberra Gungahlin	2009-2010
2nd	56	J Knight (22) & G Leahey-Butler (11)	Tuggeranong	2009-2010
3rd	43	E Parkinson (19*) & T Claridge (13)	ANU	2009-2010
4th	35	K Frkic (29*) & M Mayoh (15*)	North Canberra Gungahlin	2009-2010
5th	68	V King (21) & G Leahev-Butler (39)	Western Districts UC	2009-2010

# Appendix A – Season Statistics

Batting									
Name	Mat	Inns	NOs	Runs	HS	Ave	50's	100's	Ducks
Alexander, Graeme	13	10	1	32	8	3.56	0	0	2
Allen, Jack	1	1	0	15	15	15.00	0	0	0
Baker, Peter	3	3	0	11	9	3.67	0	0	1
Bates, Ron	7	7	2	68	41*	13.60	0	0	2
Bennett, Felix	20	15	4	66	22*	6.00	0	0	6
Blaney-Brown, Archie	10	8	0	95	38	11.88	0	0	1
Blewett, Richard	3	3	1	54	23*	27.00	0	0	0
Blissett, Lincoln	7	5	4	23	13*	23.00	0	0	1
Bray, Kyle	3	2	0	37	31	18.50	0	0	0
Brennan, Elijah	17	16	4	293	56	24.42	2	0	1
Bridgen, Keith	1	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	0	0
Bridgen, Stuart	23	15	1	108	35	7.71	0	0	5
Brunker, Adrian	10	8	0	208	64	26.00	1	0	0
Brunker, John	4	4	2	11	6*	5.50	0	0	2
Brunker, Kai	16	9	5	90	28*	22.50	0	0	1
Bush, Derek	3	3	1	15	15	7.50	0	0	1
Bush, Duane	11	11	0	130	39	11.82	0	0	2
Butler, Grant	6	6	3	75	31	25.00	0	0	0
Cheatle, Oliver	20	1	1	0	0*	na	0	0	0
Cleverly, Jeff	1	1	0	16	16	16.00	0	0	0
Clugston, Daniel	18	14	1	280	55	21.54	2	0	2
Coate, James	14	12	3	356	130	39.56	1	1	1
Connell, Brian	2	2	0	6	6	3.00	0	0	1
Couch, Adam	15	6	1	108	57*	21.60	1	0	2
Cross, Stephen	19	14	5	197	40*	21.89	0	0	1
Das, Oskar	17	15	4	385	100*	35.00	1	1	0
Di-Campli, Dom	7	6	0	177	76	29.50	1	0	0
Di-Campli, Rory	13	7	2	58	28	11.60	0	0	1
Dimarhos, James	21	15	4	224	73	20.36	1	0	1
Ditton, Khye	13	12	2	302	110*	30.20	0	1	1
Ditton, Rohan	9	7	1	215	57	35.83	1	0	0
Doyle, Christopher	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1
Drayton, Troy	2	2	0	10	7	5.00	0	0	0
Dukoski, Vele	19	17	0	367	69	21.59	2	0	2
Dunner, Peter	3	3	0	16	14	5.33	0	0	1
Edgar, Cameron	20	15	2	277	82*	21.31	2	0	4
Falkenberg, Bradley	15	14	1	394	167	30.31	0	1	0
Farrell, Ryan	2	2	1	67	59*	67.00	1	0	0
Fern, John	3	4	2	52	42*	26.00	0	0	0
Frost, Michael	13	8	4	171	53*	42.75	1	0	0
Frost, Samuel	6	4	0	55	35	13.75	0	0	1
Gainsford, Sam	2	1	0	27	27	27.00	0	0	0
Gilbert, Geoffrey	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1
Gillespie, Guy	5	2	1	31	23*	31.00	0	0	0

Batting									
Name	Mat	Inns	NOs	Runs	HS	Ave	50's	100's	Ducks
Graham, William	19	7	4	62	27	20.67	0	0	1
Green, Monty	4	4	2	42	33*	21.00	0	0	0
Hamill, Ian	5	5	1	89	55*	22.25	1	0	0
Harding, Matthew	13	13	0	204	67	15.69	1	0	3
Harris, Leslie	7	7	4	316	111*	105.33	0	1	0
Harvey, Nicholas	7	5	1	36	15	9.00	0	0	0
Higgs, Mark	12	12	1	359	81*	32.64	3	0	0
Hooper, Steve	2	2	2	65	45*	na	0	0	0
Horsfall, David	12	10	2	436	125	54.50	4	1	0
Hunter, Leo	19	14	1	246	62	18.92	2	0	4
Hunter, Michael	5	2	0	15	12	7.50	0	0	0
Jensen, Peter	16	11	5	185	43	30.83	0	0	0
Johnson, Simon	14	8	1	200	53	28.57	1	0	1
Kellar, Tom	18	15	2	269	81	20.69	1	0	0
Kennedy, Martin	7	7	1	42	14	7.00	0	0	0
Kirk, Lawrie	7	7	1	68	43*	11.33	0	0	0
Klower, Tristan	18	9	5	45	20	11.25	0	0	1
Knox, Angus	1	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	0	0
Kumar, Abhinash	10	8	1	185	48*	26.43	0	0	0
Kumar, Harendra	1	1	1	2	2*	na	0	0	0
Langston, David	9	8	2	135	44*	22.50	0	0	2
Langton, Dan	5	3	0	21	13	7.00	0	0	0
Lawson, Matthew	11	12	2	317	118*	31.70	0	1	0
Lever, Sam	11	5	2	30	15	10.00	0	0	1
Manners, Micah	19	16	4	362	75*	30.17	1	0	1
Martin, Ryan	9	5	2	19	6*	6.33	0	0	1
McCarten, Blake	15	16	1	314	79	20.93	1	0	0
McGann, Luke	16	14	2	168	35	14.00	0	0	1
McGregor, Aaron	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	0	0
Mehta, Niraj	1	1	0	8	8	8.00	0	0	0
Millynn, Brad	18	12	5	113	35*	16.14	0	0	1
Molineux, Gary	1	1	0	22	22	22.00	0	0	0
Moore, Brad	18	7	0	118	67	16.86	1	0	1
Moore, Philip	15	14	2	470	204*	39.17	1	1	3
Moore, Stephen	9	9	3	264	75*	44.00	1	0	1
Murdoch, Jack	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	0	0
O'Brien, Callum	16	12	4	115	33*	14.38	0	0	3
O'Brien, Matt	15	8	3	36	16	7.20	0	0	4
O'Brien, Rory	10	5	1	64	39	16.00	0	0	1
O'Neill, Barry	1	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	0	0
O'Rourke, Fraser	2	2	1	31	24*	31.00	0	0	0
O'Rourke, Harry	16	13	1	401	62	33.42	3	0	0
O'Rourke, Michael	10	7	3	163	52*	40.75	1	0	1
Paton, Matt	17	10	5	110	27	22.00	0	0	0
Petreski, Petre	1	10	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1
Postance, Ashley	2	2	1	35	35*	35.00	0	0	1
Prince, Yadwinder	16	4	1	9	6	3.00	0	0	0
i inice, i adwilldel	10	4	1	J	U	5.00	U	U	U

Batting											
Name	Mat	Inns	NOs	Runs	HS	Ave	50's	100's	Ducks		
Rains, Richard	1	1	1	0	0*	na	0	0	0		
Ranasinghe, Hemal	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1		
Rebus, David	7	7	0	46	26	6.57	0	0	3		
Rebus, Ella	1	1	1	3	3*	na	0	0	0		
Rebus, Matthew	13	11	1	303	89	30.30	3	0	1		
Rebus, Sue	2	2	1	2	2*	2.00	0	0	1		
Regent, Robert	5	3	1	114	94	57.00	1	0	0		
Rose, Roy	2	1	1	0	0*	na	0	0	0		
Sandford, Marcus	1	1	0	3	3	3.00	0	0	0		
Sharma, Sanjay	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	0	0		
Singh Khillan, Balinder	23	17	3	342	74	24.43	1	0	3		
Singh, Amardeep	8	6	0	22	7	3.67	0	0	1		
Singh, Jaskaran	14	3	2	12	6*	12.00	0	0	0		
Singh, Nirmal	18	17	2	295	80	19.67	1	0	3		
Smith, Bradley	16	8	5	52	19*	17.33	0	0	1		
Smith, Callum	16	6	2	48	14	12.00	0	0	0		
Smith, Jake	15	6	3	72	32*	24.00	0	0	1		
Solway, Dean	23	21	2	631	147	33.21	3	2	4		
Solway, Mark	21	19	7	520	82	43.33	4	0	1		
Solway, Peter	15	7	2	390	81*	78.00	5	0	0		
Somerville, Peter	2	2	0	8	5	4.00	0	0	0		
Southwell, Darren	16	2	1	0	0*	0.00	0	0	1		
Stachow, Michael	10	6	2	58	16	14.50	0	0	0		
Thakur, Vish	18	17	3	455	85	32.50	3	0	1		
Thorn, Aaron	16	14	1	221	73	17.00	1	0	1		
Ticehurst, Paul	2	2	0	40	25	20.00	0	0	0		
Tiwary, Ansh	15	15	1	290	83	20.71	2	0	3		
Turner, Bill	8	7	1	32	15*	5.33	0	0	2		
Uddin, Riaz	14	11	1	287	75	28.70	1	0	2		
Van Luin, Tyler	22	20	3	611	122	35.94	3	1	0		
Vandenbroucke, Daniel	17	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	0	0		
Waterman, Ted	10	7	0	49	13	7.00	0	0	0		
White, Jonathan	13	13	2	300	92	27.27	2	0	1		
Wylks, Paul	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1		

\* not out

Bowling											
Name	Mtch	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R	5w/Inn	10w/Mtch
Alexander, Graeme	13	71.3	17	15	186	12.40	5/34	28.60	2.61	1	
Allen, Jack	1	2	0	0	16		0/16		8.00		
Baker, Peter	3	12	0	3	61	20.33	2/24	24.00	5.08		
Bates, Ron	7	6	0	1	26	26.00	1/7	36.00	4.33		
Bennett, Felix	20	157	34	31	587	18.94	4/55	30.39	3.74		
Blewett, Richard	3	14	1	4	66	16.50	2/11	21.00	4.71		
Blissett, Lincoln	7	36	7	11	115	10.45	3/16	19.64	3.19		
Bray, Kyle	3	8	3	0	14		0/6		1.75		
Brennan, Elijah	17	12	0	1	46	46.00	1/11	72.00	3.83		
Bridgen, Keith	1	3	0	0	10		0/10		3.33		
Bridgen, Stuart	23	7	1	1	22	22.00	1/22	42.00	3.14		
Brunker, Adrian	10	7	0	2	33	16.50	1/7	21.00	4.71		
Brunker, John	4	6.1	0	0	50		0/4		8.20		
Brunker, Kai	16	145.3	28	32	443	13.84	4/40	27.28	3.05		
Bush, Derek	3	2	0	1	3	3.00	1/3	12.00	1.50		
Butler, Grant	6	19	2	4	107	26.75	2/18	28.50	5.63		
Cheatle, Oliver	20	110.4	13	16	466	29.13	3/15	41.50	4.22		
Clugston, Daniel	18	86.3	9	19	307	16.16	3/5	27.32	3.56		
Coate, James	14	58.2	7	14	256	18.29	4/28	25.00	4.40		
Connell, Brian	2	3	0	0	8		0/8		2.67		
Couch, Adam	15	90	11	11	280	25.45	2/18	49.09	3.11		
Das, Oskar	17	4	3	0	2		0/2		0.50		
Di-Campli, Dom	7	3	1	0	3		0/1		1.00		
Di-Campli, Rory	13	82.3	15	14	248	17.71	2/6	35.36	3.01		
Ditton, Khye	13	81	16	14	263	18.79	2/16	34.71	3.25		
Drayton, Troy	2	14	2	3	54	18.00	2/24	28.00	3.86		
Dukoski, Vele	19	146	15	26	602	23.15	5/26	33.69	4.12	1	

Bowling											
Name	Mtch	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R	5w/Inn 10w/Mtch	
Dunner, Peter	3	1	0	0	7				7.00		
Edgar, Cameron	20	103	21	12	360	30.00	3/36	51.50	3.50		
Farrell, Ryan	2	8	0	2	65	32.50	2/26	24.00	8.13		
Fern, John	3	19	2	2	69	34.50	2/8	57.00	3.63		
Frost, Michael	13	10.4	0	5	38	7.60	3/17	12.80	3.65		
Gainsford, Sam	2	8	0	2	49	24.50	2/29	24.00	6.13		
Gillespie, Guy	5	17	2	2	104	52.00	1/12	51.00	6.12		
Graham, William	19	193.1	47	31	473	15.26	5/40	37.39	2.45	2	
Green, Monty	4	5.2	1	1	25	25.00	1/25	32.00	4.81		
Gumm, Kallie	1	1	0	2	5	2.50	2/5	3.00	5.00		
Hamill, Ian	5	21	1	5	91	18.20	2/17	25.20	4.33		
Harris, Leslie	7	18	4	5	39	7.80	4/15	21.60	2.17		
Harvey, Nicholas	7	22	1	2	87	43.50	1/8	66.00	3.95		
Higgs, Mark	12	69	4	12	335	27.92	5/34	34.50	4.86	1	
Hooper, Steve	2	13	1	1	54	54.00	1/35	78.00	4.15		
Hunter, Leo	19	59	6	12	250	20.83	2/1	29.50	4.24		
Hunter, Michael	5	8.1	1	1	33	33.00	1/20	49.00	4.07		
Jensen, Peter	16	87	9	16	271	16.94	3/11	32.63	3.11		
Johnson, Simon	14	34	4	6	126	21.00	2/7	34.00	3.71		
Kennedy, Martin	7	30	2	7	138	19.71	3/22	25.71	4.60		
Kirk, Lawrie	7	19	1	3	92	30.67	2/36	38.00	4.84		
Klower, Tristan	18	115	16	15	447	29.80	3/18	46.00	3.89		
Kumar, Abhinash	10	53	9	10	171	17.10	5/27	31.80	3.23	1	
Kumar, Harendra	1	1	0	0	4		0/4		4.00		
Langston, David	9	85.1	24	13	188	14.46	4/11	39.31	2.21		
Lawson, Matthew	11	2	0	1	8	8.00	1/5	12.00	4.00		
Lever, Sam	11	57.2	15	16	147	9.19	4/9	21.50	2.57		
Manners, Micah	19	171.3	49	33	452	13.70	4/19	31.18	2.64		

Bowling											
Name	Mtch	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R	5w/Inn	10w/Mtch
Martin, Ryan	9	41	1	7	159	22.71	1/15	35.14	3.88		
McGann, Luke	16	4	0	1	23	23.00	1/23	24.00	5.75		
Millynn, Brad	18	66.4	5	12	268	22.33	3/1	33.33	4.04		
Molineux, Gary	1	7	0	2	22	11.00	2/22	21.00	3.14		
Moore, Brad	18	4	1	1	10	10.00	1/9	24.00	2.50		
Moore, Philip	15	5	0	0	37		0/37		7.40		
O'Brien, Callum	16	19.5	0	6	104	17.33	2/2	19.83	5.33		
O'Brien, Matt	15	57	4	14	203	14.50	2/12	24.43	3.56		
O'Brien, Rory	10	17.5	2	5	69	13.80	2/14	21.40	3.94		
O'Neill, Barry	1	5	1	0	26		0/26		5.20		
O'Rourke, Fraser	2	4	0	1	25	25.00	1/25	24.00	6.25		
O'Rourke, Harry	16	126.1	20	37	357	9.65	5/26	20.46	2.83	1	
O'Rourke, Michael	10	41.5	12	8	81	10.13	2/12	31.38	1.95		
Paton, Matt	17	9	0	2	40	20.00	1/8	27.00	4.44		
Petreski, Petre	1	3	0	2	16	8.00	2/16	9.00	5.33		
Prince, Yadwinder	16	136.2	27	23	470	20.43	4/23	35.57	3.45		
Rains, Richard	1	6	0	0	20		0/20		3.33		
Ranasinghe, Hemal	1	7	0	4	36	9.00	4/36	10.50	5.14		
Rebus, David	7	21	3	3	83	27.67	2/31	42.00	3.95		
Rebus, Ella	1	2	0	2	6	3.00	2/6	6.00	3.00		
Rebus, Matthew	13	11.3	1	5	59	11.80	3/36	13.80	5.22		
Rebus, Sue	2	8	2	0	18		0/6		2.25		
Sandford, Marcus	1	2	0	0	14				7.00		
Sharma, Sanjay	1	5	0	1	32	32.00	1/32	30.00	6.40		
Singh Khillan, Balinder	23	75.1	8	17	370	21.76	5/28	26.53	4.93	1	
Singh, Amardeep	8	32	6	2	107	53.50	1/2	96.00	3.34		
Singh, Jaskaran	14	120	37	19	362	19.05	3/6	37.89	3.02		
Singh, Nirmal	18	91.5	10	13	384	29.54	3/26	42.38	4.20		

Bowling											
Name	Mtch	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R	5w/Inn	10w/Mtch
Smith, Bradley	16	130.1	24	16	494	30.88	6/75	48.81	3.80	1	
Smith, Callum	16	102.1	9	19	424	22.32	4/32	32.26	4.15		
Smith, Jake	15	121.3	14	28	439	15.68	5/35	26.04	3.62	1	
Solway, Dean	23	34	4	4	124	31.00	2/20	51.00	3.65		
Solway, Mark	21	186.2	24	19	685	36.05	5/79	58.84	3.68	1	
Solway, Peter	15	11.3	2	3	31	10.33	3/16	23.00	2.74		
Somerville, Peter	2	3	0	0	13		0/13		4.33		
Southwell, Darren	16	155	42	26	463	17.81	5/5	35.77	2.99	1	
Stachow, Michael	10	56.1	19	10	123	12.30	2/10	33.70	2.19		
Stortini, Adam	3	8	1	0	36		0/2		4.50		
Thakur, Vish	18	1	0	0	3		0/3		3.00		
Thorn, Aaron	16	5	0	1	23	23.00	1/19	30.00	4.60		
Ticehurst, Paul	2	1	0	0	7				7.00		
Tiwary, Ansh	15	4	0	0	23		0/23		5.75		
Turner, Bill	8	52	12	8	204	25.50	3/15	39.00	3.92		
Uddin, Riaz	14	12	0	1	53	53.00	1/8	72.00	4.42		
Van Luin, Tyler	22	188.4	32	33	718	21.76	5/46	34.30	3.81	1	
Vandenbroucke, Daniel	17	102	15	18	372	20.67	2/10	34.00	3.65		
Waterman, Ted	10	26	5	4	94	23.50	3/15	39.00	3.62		
White, Jonathan	13	1	0	0	9		0/9		9.00		

Fielding & Wicket-keeping											
Name	Matches	Catches	Catches (w/k)	Stumpings	Run Outs	Total					
Alexander, Graeme	13	2	0	1	0	3					
Baker, Peter	3	1	0	0	0	1					
Bates, Ron	7	0	1	0	0	1					
Bennett, Felix	20	9	0	0	0	9					
Blaney-Brown, Archie	10	1	4	0	0	5					
Blewett, Richard	3	1	0	1	0	2					
Blissett, Lincoln	7	3	0	1	0	4					
Bray, Kyle	3	2	0	0	0	2					
Brennan, Elijah	17	5	0	0	0	5					
Bridgen, Stuart	23	6	3	1	2	12					
Brunker, Adrian	10	5	2	0	0	7					
Brunker, Kai	16	2	0	2	0	4					
Bush, Duane	11	4	0	1	0	5					
Butler, Grant	6	1	0	0	0	1					
Cheatle, Oliver	20	6	0	0	0	6					
Clugston, Daniel	18	13	0	3	0	16					
Coate, James	14	2	0	0	0	2					
Couch, Adam	15	5	0	2	0	7					
Cross, Stephen	19	4	0	0	0	4					
Das, Oskar	17	6	0	1	0	7					
Di-Campli, Dom	7	3	0	0	0	3					
-	13	3	0	0	0	3					
Di-Campli, Rory			-	0	•						
Dimarhos, James	21 13	6	0	1	0	7					
Ditton, Khye	9	5	0	0	0	5 3					
Ditton, Rohan	19	5	0	1	0						
Dukoski, Vele			0	1	0	6					
Edgar, Cameron	20	4	0	1	0	5					
Falkenberg, Bradley	15	1	0	0	0	1					
Farrell, Ryan	2	2	0	0	0	<u> </u>					
Frost, Michael	13	4	0	0	0	4					
Frost, Samuel	6	1	0	0	0	1					
Graham, William	19	3	0	0	0	3					
Green, Monty	4	0	0	1	0	1					
Gumm, Kallie	1	1	0	0	0	1					
Hamill, Ian	5	2	0	0	0	2					
Harding, Matthew	13	5	0	2	0	7					
Harris, Leslie	7	1	0	0	0	1					
Harvey, Nicholas	7	1	0	1	0	2					
Higgs, Mark	12	2	0	0	0	2					
Horsfall, David	12	1	3	1	0	5					
Hunter, Leo	19	2	0	0	0	2					
Hunter, Michael	5	1	0	0	0	1					
Johnson, Simon	14	3	0	1	0	4					
Kellar, Tom	18	1	16	0	2	19					
Kennedy, Martin	7	2	0	1	0	3					
Kirk, Lawrie	7	4	0	0	0	4					
Klower, Tristan	18	3	0	0	0	3					
Kumar, Abhinash	10	5	0	0	0	5					

Fielding & Wicket-keeping												
Name	Matches	Catches	Catches	Stumpings	Run Outs	Total						
T D . 11			(w/k)									
Langston, David	9	6	0	0	0	6						
Lawson, Matthew	11	7	0	0	0	1						
Lever, Sam	11 19	1 7	0	0	0	1 10						
Manners, Micah	9	7 2	0	3 0	$0 \\ 0$	10 2						
Martin, Ryan McCarten, Blake	15	1	14	0	4	19						
McGann, Luke	16	0	6	3	4	13						
Millynn, Brad	18	5	0	0	0	5						
Moore, Brad	18	0	14	3	6	23						
Moore, Philip	15	7	0	1	0	8						
Moore, Stephen	9	0	1	0	1	2						
O'Brien, Callum	16	1	0	0	0	1						
O'Brien, Matt	15	2	0	0	0	2						
O'Brien, Rory	10	1	0	0	0	1						
O'Rourke, Harry	16	3	0	1	0	4						
O'Rourke, Michael	10	5	0	2	0	7						
Paton, Matt	17	2	11	0	9	22						
Postance, Ashley	2	1	0	0	0	1						
Prince, Yadwinder	16	4	0	3	0	7						
Rebus, David	7	3	0	0	0	3						
Rebus, Matthew	13	6	0	0	0	6						
Regent, Robert	5	2	0	0	0	2						
Singh Khillan, Balinder	23	8	0	0	0	8						
Singh, Amardeep	8	3	0	0	0	3						
Singh, Jaskaran	14	4	0	0	0	4						
Singh, Nirmal	18	1	0	2	0	3						
Smith, Bradley	16	4	0	0	0	4						
Smith, Callum	16	4	0	0	0	4						
Smith, Jake	15	2	0	0	0	2						
Solway, Dean	23	12	0	2	0	14						
Solway, Mark	21	17	0	2	0	19						
Solway, Peter	15	6	0	2	0	8						
Southwell, Darren	16	3	0	0	0	3						
Stachow, Michael	10	5	0	1	0	6						
Stortini, Adam	3	1	0	0	0	1						
Thakur, Vish	18	1	0	0	0	1						
Thorn, Aaron	16	5	0	1	0	6						
Tiwary, Ansh	15	6	0	0	0	6						
Turner, Bill	8	1	0	0	0	1						
Uddin, Riaz	14	1	0	3	0	4						
Van Luin, Tyler	22	6	0	1	0	7						
Vandenbroucke, Daniel	17	5	0	0	0	5						
White, Jonathan	13	6	0	1	0	7						
Wylks, Paul	1	1	0	0	0	1						

Fielding records are not 100% complete as information is sometimes omitted in the scorebooks.